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PRE-FILED FOR INTRODUCTION IN THE 1984 SESSION

By Assemblyman DEVERIN

Ax Acrt to amend the “New Jersey Medical Assistance and Health
Services Act,” approved January 15, 1969 (P. L. 1968, c. 413).

B 1T ENACTED by the Senate and General Assembly of the State
of New Jersey:

1. Section 3 of P. L. 1968, c. 413 (C. 30:4D-3) is amended to
read as follows:

3. Definitions. As used in this act, and unless the context other-
wise requires:

a. “Applicant” means any person who has made application for
purposes of becoming a “qualified applicant.”

b. “Commissioner” means the Commissioner of the Department
of Human Services.

¢. “Department” means the Department of Human Services,
which is herein designated as the single State agency to administer
the provisions of this act.

d. “Director” means the Director of the Division of Medical
Assistance and Health Services.

e. “Division” means the Division of Medical Assistance and
Health Services.

f. “Medicaid” means the New Jersey Aedical Assistance and
Health Services Program.

g “Medical assistance” means payments on behalf of recipients
to providers for medical care and services authorized under this
act.

h. “Provider” means any person, public or private institution,
agency or business concern approved by the division lawfully pro-
EXPLANATION—Matter enclosed in bold-fleedbeh*ehj [:h:;] in fhe sbove bill

is not d and is intended to o the law.
Matter printed in ftalics thus is mew matter.
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viding medicg] care, services, goods and supplies authorized under
this act, holdiﬁg where applicable, a current valid license to pro-
vide such servige‘s.t-)r to dispense such goods or supplies.

i. “Qualified applicant”™ means a person who is a resident of
this State and is determined to need medical care and services as
provided under this act, and who:

(1) Is a recipient of aid to families with dependent children;
[or] ,

(2) Is a recipient of supplemental security income for the aged,
blind and disabled under Title XVI of the Social Security Act; [or]

(3) Is an “ineligible spouse” of a recipient of supplemental
security income for the aged, blind and disabled under Title XVI of
the Social Security Act, as defined by the federal Social Security
Administration; [or]

(4) Would be eligible to receive public assistance under a cate-
gorical assistance program except for failure to meet an eligiﬁility
condition or requirement imposed under such State program whick
is prahibited under Title XIX of the federal Social Security Act
such as a durational residence requirement, relative responsibility,
eonsent to imposition of a lien; [or]

(5) Is a child between 18 and 21 years of age who would be
eligible for aid to families with dependent children living in the
family group except for lack of school attendance or pursuit of
formalized vocational or technical training; [or]

(6) Is an individual under 21 years of age who qualifies for
eategorieal assistance on the basis of financial eligibility, but does
not qualify as a dependent child under the State’s program of aid
to families with dependent children (AFDC), or groups of such
individuals, including but not limited to, children in foster place-
ment under supervision of the Division of Youth and Family
Services whose maintenance is being paid in whole or in part from
public funds, children placed in & foster home or imstitution by a
private adoption agency in New Jersey or children in intermediate
care facilities, including institutions for the mentally retarded, or
in psychiatric bospitals; for]

(7) Meets the standard of need applicable to khis eircumstances
under a eategorical assistance program or supplemental security
income program, but is not receiving such assistance and applies
for medical assistance only.

A person shall not be considered a qualified applicant if, within
1 year of becoming or makiug application to become a qualified
applicant, he has made a voluntary assignment or transfer of real
or personal property, or any interest or estate in property, for less
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than adequate consideration. Such voluntary assignment or trans-
fer of property shall be deemed to have been made for the purpose
of becoming a qualified applicant in the absence of evidence to
the contrary supplied by the applicant. This requirement shall not
be applicable to Supplemental Security Income applicants or aged,
blind or disabled applicants for Medicaid only unless authorized
by federal law, or

(8) Meets the standard of need applicable to his circumstances
under a medically needy category set forth in subsection b. of
section 7 of P. L. 1968, c. 413 (C. 30:4D-7).

j- “Becipient” means any qualified applicant receiving bemefits
under this act.

k. “Resident” means a person who is living in the State
voluntarily with the intention of making his bome there and not
for a temporary purpose. Temporary absences from the State,
with subsequent returns to the State or intent to return when the
purposes of the absences have been accomplished, do not interrupt
continuity of residence.

L “State Medicaid Commission” means the Governor, the Com-
missioner of Human Services, the President of the Senate and the
Speaker of the General Assembly, hereby eonstituted a commission
to approve and direct the means and method for the payment of
claims pursuant to this act.

m. “Third party” means any person, institation, corporation,
insurance company, public, private or governmental entity who
is or may be liable in contract, tort, or otherwise by law or equity
to pay all or part of the medical cost of injury, disease or disability
of an applicant for or recipient of medical assistance payable under
this act.

2. Section 7 of P. L. 198, c. 413 (C. 30:4D-7) is amended to
read as follows:

7. Duties of commissioner. The commissioner is authorized and
empowered to issue, or to cause to be issued through the Division
of Medical Assistance and Health Services all necessary rules and
regulations and administrative orders, and to do or eause to be
done all other acts and things necessary to secure for the State of
New Jersey the maximum federal participation that is available
with respect to a program of medical assistance, consistent with
fiscal responsibility and within the limits of funds available for
any fiscal year, and to the extent authorized by thé medical assist-
ance program plan; to adopt fee schedules with regard to medical
assistance benefits and otherwise to accomplish the purposes of this
act, ineluding specifically the following:
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a. Subject to the limits imposed by this act, to submit a plan for
medical assistance, as required by Title XIX of the Federal Social
Security Act, to the federal Department of Health[, Education]
and [Welfare] Human Services for approval pursuant to the pro-
visions of such laws; to act for the State in making negotiations
relative to the submission and approval of such plan, to make such
arrangements, not inconsistent with the law, as may be required by
or pursuant to federal law to obtain and retain such approval and
to secure for the State the benefits of the provisions of such law;

b. Subject to the limits imposed by this act, to determine the
amount and scope of services to be covered, that the amounts to be
paid are reasonable, and the duration of medical assistance to be
furnished; provided, however, that the department shall provide
medical assistance on behalf of all recipients of categorical assist-
ance and such other related groups as are mandatory under federal
laws and rules and regulations, as they now are or as they may
be hereafter amended, in order to obtain federal matching funds
for such purposes and, in addition, provide medical assistance for
the foster children specified in section 3. i. (7) of this act. The
medical assistance provided for these groups shall not be less in
scope, duration, or amount than is currently furnished such groups,
and in addition, shall include at least the minimum services re-
quired under federal laws and rules and regulations to obtain
federal matching funds for such purposes.

The commissioner is authorized and empowered, at such times
as he may determine feasible, within the limits of appropriated
funds for any fiscal year, to extend the scope, duration, and amount
of medical assistance on behalf of these groups of categorical
assistance recipients, related groups as are mandatory, and foster
children authorized pursuant to section 3. i. (7) of this act, so
as to include, in whole or in part, the optional medical services
authorized under federal laws and rules and regulations, and the
commissioner shall have the authority to establish and maintain the
priorities given such optional medical services; provided, however,
that medical assistance shall be provided to at least such groups
and in such scope, duration, and amount as are required to obtain
federal matching funds;

The commissioner is further authorized and empowered, at such
times as he may determine feasible, within the limits of appropri-
ated funds for any fiscal vear, to issue, or cause to be issued through
the Division of Medical Assistance and Health Services all neces-
sary rules, regulations and administrative orders, and to do or
cause to be done all other acts and things necessary to implement
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and administer demonstration projects pursuant to Title XI, Sec-
tion 1115 of the federal Social Security Act, including, but not
limited to waiving compliance with specific provisions of this act,
to the extent and for the period of time the commissioner deems
necessary, as well as contracting with any legal entity, including
but not limited to corporations organized pursuant to Title 144,
New Jersey Statutes (N. J. 8. 14A:1-1 et seq.) [and], Title 15, Re-
vised Statutes (R. S. 15:1-1 et seq.) and Title 154, New Jersey
Statutes (N. J. S. 154:1-1 et seq.) as well as boards, groups,
agencies, persons and other public or private entities[.];

The commissioner is further authorized and empowered, at such
times as he may determine feasible, within the limits of appropri-
ated funds for any fiscal year, to expand the medical assistance
program to include medically needy groups whose income and
resources equal or exceed the levels of maintenance under the plan
but are insufficient to meet their medical costs and who, except for
their financial circumstances, meet all of the conditions of eligibility
under one of the categorical assistance or supplemental security
tncome recipient programs. The medical assistance provided for
these medically needy groups shall include at least the minimum
services required under federal laws, riles or regulations to obtain
federal matching funds for these purposes, and may be expanded
to provide medical assistance services currently furnished other
recipients.

¢. To administer the provisions of this act; ,

d. To make reports to the federal Department of Health[, Edu-
cation] and [Welfare] Human Services as from time to time may
be required by such federal department and to the New Jersey
Legislature as hereinafter provided;

e. To assure that any applicant, qualified applicant or recipient
shall be afforded the opportunity for a hearing should his claim for
medical assistance be denied, reduced, terminated or not acted upon
within a reasonable time;

f. To assure that providers shall be afforded the opportunity for
an administrative hearing within a reasonable time on any valid
complaint arising out of the claims payment process;

g. To provide safeguards to restrict the use or disclosure of
information concerning applicants and recipients to purposes
directly connected with administration of this act;

h. To take all necessary action to recover any and all payments
incorrectly made to or illegally received by a provider from such
provider or his estate or from any other person, firm, corporation,
partnership or entity responsible for or receiving the benefit or
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100 possession of the incorrect or illegal payments or their estates,
101 successors or assigns, and to assess and collect such penalties as
102 are provided for herein;

103 i To take all necessary action to recover the cost of benefits
104 incorrectly provided to or illegally obtained by a recipient, includ-
105 ing those made after a voluntary divestiture of real or personal
106 property or any interest or estate in property for less than adequate
Y07 consideration made for the purpose of qualifying for assistance
108 from such recipient, legallr responsible relative, representative
109 payee, or any other party or parties whose action or inaction
110 resulted in the incorrect or illegal payments, or from their respec-
111 tive estates, as the case may be and to assess and collect such
112 penalties as are provided for herein, except that no lien may be
113 imposed against property of the recipient prior to his death except
114 in accordance with section 17 of P. L. 1968, c. 413 (C. 30:4D-17);
115 provided, however, that no recovery action shall be initiated 5
116 years after an incorrect payment has been made to a recipient
117 when such incorrect payment was due solely to an error on the
118 part of the State or any agency, agent or subdivision thereof;

119 j. To take all necessary action to recover the cost of benefits
120 correctly provided to a recipient from the estate of said recipieut
121 in accordance with sections 6 through 12 of this amendatory and
122 supplementary act;

123 k. To take all reasonable measures to ascertain the legal or
124 equitable liability of third parties to pay for care and services
125 (available under the plan) arising out of injury, disease, or dis-
126 ability; where it is known that a third party has a liability, to treat
127 such liability as a resource of the individual on whose behalf the '
128 care and services are made available for purposes of determining
129 eligibility; and in any case where such a liability is found to exist
130 after medical assistance has been made avsilable on bebalf of the
131 individual, to seek reimbursement for such assistanee to the extent
132 of such liability;

133 L To compromise, waive or settle and execute a release of any
134 claim arising under this act including interest or other penalties,
‘135 or designate another to compromise, waive or settle and execute
136 a release of any claim arising under this act. The commmissioner or
137 his designee whose title shall be specified by regulation may com-
138 promise, settle or waive any such claim in whole or in part, either
139 in the interest of the medicaid program or for any other reason
140 which the commissioner by regulation shall establish;

141 m. To pay or credit to a provider any net amount found by
142 final audit as defined by regulation to be owing to the provider.
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143 Such payment, if it is not made within 45 days of the final audit,
144 shall include interest on the amount due at the maximum legal rate
145 in effect on the date the payment became due, except that such
146 interest shall not be paid on any obligation for the period preceding
147 September 15, 1976. This subsection shall not apply until federal
148 financial participation is available for such interest payments:
149 n. To issue, or designate another to issue, supenas to compel
150 the attendance of witnesses and, the production of books, records,
151 accounts, papers and documents of any party, whether or not that
152 party is a provider, which directly or indirectly relate to goods or
153 services provided under this act, for the purpose of assisting in
154 any investigation, examination, or inspection, or in any suspension,
155 debarment, disqualification, recovery, or other proceeding arising
156 under this act;
157 o. To solicit, receive and review bids pursuant to the provisions
158 of P. L. 1954, c. 48 (C. 52:34-6 et seq.) and all amendments and
159 supplements thereto, by authorized insurance companies and nou-
160 profit hospital service corporations or medical service corpora-
‘161 tions, incorporated in New Jersey, and authorized to do business
162 pursuant to P. L. 1938, c¢. 366 (C. 17:48-1 et seq.) or P. L. 1940,
163 c. 74 (C 17:48A-1 et seq.), and to make recommendations in con-
164 nection therewith to the State Medicaid Commission;
165 p. To contract, or otherwise provide as in this act provided, for
166 the payment of claims in the manner approved by the State Medi-
167 caid Commission;
168 q. Where necessary, to advance funds to the underwriter or fiscal
169 agent to enable such underwriter or fiscal agent, in accordance with
170 terms of its contract, to make payments to providers;
171 r. To enter into contracts with federal, State, or local govern-
172 mental agencies, or other appropriate parties, when necessary to
173 carry out the provisions of this act;
174 8. To assure that the nature and quality of the medical assistance
175 provided for under this act shall be uniform and equitable to all
176 recipients.
1 3. This act shall take effect six months following enactment, but
2 all arrangements necessary or appropriate to enable this act to
3 become fully effective on this date shall be made as promptly as
4 possible as though this act were effective immediately.
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STATEMENT
This bill would expand the medicaid program to certain “medi-
cally needy’’ groups who 1. are ineligible for medicaid because their
incowes are too high, but 2. can demonstrate that their incomes are
insufficient to meet medical costs, and 3. except for financial circum-
stances, meet all of the conditions of eligibility under one of the

categorical assistance or supplemental security income programs.

—————



ASSEMBLYMAN JOHN S. WATSON (Acting Chairman): Will everyone
please take a seat? We are ready to go into our second hearing. We
are running about 25 minutes late, which isn't too bad.

On behalf of this Committee, I would like to thank all of you
for appearing here this morning. At this time I will introduce the
Assembly representatives here. On my left is the sponsor of Assembly
Bill 608, Assemblyman Thomas Deverin, and in just a few moments you are
going to hear from him. We also have with us Assemblyman Karl Weidel,
Assemblyman Rodney Frelinghuysen, and Assemblyman Anthony Villane.

This is the second public hearing on A-608, which would
extend the State's Medicaid program to individuals and households
considered medically needy. At the Committee's first public hearing on
July 12, 1984, this Committee requested the Department of Human
Services to develop a more specific proposal than the broad and general
language included in A-608. The Department was asked to recommend
specific income and asset levels that might be used; specific services
that should be provided to the various eligible groups; the accounting
period to be used in determining eligibility; and, whether eligibility
administration is best held at the State level, the county level, or
perhaps should be a combination of State and county administration.

One purpose of this hearing is to obtain the Department's
preferred option and then review it. I would like to apologize to the
Committee members and to the general public, but in doing so I would
like all of you to know that just about a half an hour ago we received
the fact book which was put together by the Department of Human
Services. We are now able to make that fact book available to the
Committee and to the staff. Furthermore, the Department's preferred
option has not been provided to the Committee. The Department has
indicated that it needs another month to complete its recommendations.
We will be hearing from Commissioner Albanese in just a few minutes.

The Committee also requested the Department of Health and the
New Jersey Hospital Association, in cooperation with the Department of
Human Services, to conduct a limited survey of hospitals to determine
the extent to which medically needy persons comprise the indigent

population which wuses hospital services. The Committee has not



received the results of this survey, and'we would like to find out the
reason for the delay. We would like to determine whether hospital
services should be included as one of the services provided under a
medically needy program.

At this particular time, I would like to announce that 1
intend -- along with the other Committee members present today -- to
introduce a supplemental appropriation-for $125,000 in State funds, and
$125,000 in Federal funds, for the Division of Medical Assistance and
Health Services, to help to offset their costs for researching the
Medically Needy Program. Their help has been of great benefit and
assistance to this Committee.

When you come before us to testify this morning, we want you
to be aware that we would like you to have any special amendments or
recommendations you might have in mind for this Committee's
consideration within the next week. We would like to have these
recommendations in our hands within the next week, so would you please
mail them in care of this Committee?

At this time, I would like to hear from Assemblyman Thomas
Deverin.

ASSEMBLYMAN THOMAS J. DEVERIN: Mr. Chairman, thank you so very much
for holding this hearing. I also thank the fine members of your
Committee for being here today.

Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, I guess if I have a request today
it is that somehow or other we get this legislation out of Committee
and onto the floor for some debate and some action. You know, there

are 43 sponsors of this legislation. Although they may not show up in
the record, that is how many people have been turned in as sponsors of

this legislation.

In all the years I have been here, I have never had a bill or
been part of a bill that has had as much support as this bill has. 1
can understand the reason as 1 read some of the letters and reports
that have come in. There seems to be an awful big gap between poverty
and Medicaid. There is an awful big gap between poverty and people who
need help. There are so many children who need help who are not

eligible for it. There are so many senior citizens who need help who



are not eligible for it. There are so many people seriously ill who do
not have to be. Those are not my words. I watched a television
program the other night about preventive medicine, and the matter of
taking a little prescription. For instance, I suffer from high blood
pressure. If you took my pressure right now, it would probably be
about 130 over 78. If I could not afford to pay for my pills for the
next three days, it would be 220 over 120, and I would be a sicker man
than I am right now. The problem is, we are not doing anything to
prevent people from getting seriously ill. Then they become a burden
to everyone -- to their families, to the State, to the hospitals, and
to the institutions.

This bill is not a complicated piece of legislation, and it
is not a very expensive piece of legislation. I have no qualms about
setting it up on Option Two -- if those are the words that are in here
properly -- or the 133%. The only opposition so far, Mr. Chairman,
from what I have heard about this bill, is from some of the senior
citizen groups,-becausevthere is some consideration about funding 50%
of this through the Casino Fund. That doesn't bother me at all. I do
not see any reason why we have to fund it through the Casino Fund, but
that is a concern of some people.

We are talking about a $38 million or $39 million
appropriation from this Committee. For the first time in our history
we are blessed with a lot of money. I know there are many priorities,
and I trust that this bill is one of them. It has a great deal of
merit. All of the organizations which are behind it can give you
reasons for doing it. All of the people who are caught in that gap
need help. I think that in the long run by letting them have the
preventive medicine this bill can give the children, the adults, and
the senior citizens, we will save money. The Federal government
believes in this bill. As a freeze is coming from the Federal
government, and may come from the State government, there has to be
some help for the people who are caught in this gap, not only in New
Jersey, but throughout this whole country. There are 38 or 39 states

using this program, and it is working well.



Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, first I want to thank you for the
time you have put in on this piece of legislation, and second, I
request that somehow or other we arrive at some kind of a consensus
today about the funding of the bill and how it is going to be handled.
Somehow or other we should get some kind of recognition, or a vote,
either today or in the very near future, to get it out on the floor so
we can have a real serious debate. We deeply appreciate all the State
organizations and the Commissioners of Health, Human Services, and the
Department of the Public Advocate who have been such a great help.
With all that support, I think we ought to go along and try to get this
bill moving through the process and onto the Assembly floor for some
kind of action.

Mr. Chairman, that is about all I have to say, except again
to thank you and the Committee for coming here and spending your time
on this bill.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you, Assemblyman Deverin. Are
there any questions from the members of the Committee? (no response)
Thank you for coming, Assemblyman Deverin. I know you have a court
appearance. _
ASSEMBLYMAN DEVERIN: I got a subpoena. (laughter)

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Mr. Chairman, I have one question.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Did you say $38 million is the cost for
Option Two?

ASSEMBLYMAN DEVERIN: Doc, it's approximately $38 million
from what I can gather, and a note from the Fiscal Affairs Department
was somewhere in that range, too.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: That would be the State portion?

ASSEMBLYMAN DEVERIN: Yes, and the Federal government would
put up $38 million. It is a matching program; I'm sorry I did not
mention that. That is the advantage. But, Option Two would be about
36 million, 300 and some thousand dollars. The total cost would be $73
million with the Federal government's match.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN DEVERIN: It would really start the program off,

and that is what we want to get going.



ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Thank ydu very much.

ASSEMBLYMAN FRELINGHUYSEN: Mr. Chairman?

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Assemblyman Frelinghuysen.

ASSEMBLYMAN FRELINGHUYSEN: This is not a question for the
‘sponsor, but it might be of assistance to those of us present. During
the course of the commentary, you get individuals' testimony -- where
they feel comfortable in doing so -- as to which options they feel most
strongly about. I think this business of prioritizing is important.
It would be valuable if those who testify -- if they have the
opportunity and if they feel so inclined -- would give their feelings
as to which options might perhaps be embraced initially and which ones
perhaps would follow in subsequent years, if that would be the design
or desire of this Committee and of the sponsor.

ASSEMBLYMAN DEVERIN: Mr. Chairman, I have just one more
point, and then I will keep quiet. Even if we fund it at 133%, there
would still be that gap between poverty and Medicaid persons. So, it
really would not cover everyone in the State who needs it. It would
just cover those who fit that category of the 133%.

ASSEMBLYMAN  WATSON: Thank you, Assemblyman Deverin.

Commissioner Albanese, will you please come forward? The Commissioner
has interrupted a very important meeting to be here to give us some
words of wisdom.
COMMISSIONER GEORGE J. ALBANESE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members
of the Committee. I will make some brief remarks and will then turn
the commentary over to Tom Russo and his staff, who are present today
to discuss some of the information that is in the fact book.

First of all, I would like to restate, or reemphasize my
support of the need for the Medically Needy Program in the State of New
Jersey. At this point in time, I continue to favor Option Two, which
covers ambulatory care for children, prenatal care, and select services
for the aging and disabled in the State of New Jersey.

If I ever had a doubt about the need for this program, it was
dispelled in this very room about a week ago when the Council on the
Prevention of Mental Retardation convened with experts in the area of
prenatal care. What was discussed was the fact that the lack of proper



prenatal care, which exists in our society, has a tremendous impact on
the incidence of mental retardation in the State of New Jersey and in
this nation. When we look at this program, prenatal care is certainly
a priority. One child in one State institution for a lifetime is
equivalent to $1 million of State expenditures.

Prevention, as Assemblyman Deverin so eloquently stated, is
certainly a position that the State of New Jersey must take. When we
look at our senior citizens, we look at preventive medicine and the
benefits it could have on the senior citizen population in long-term
care continuing in the State of New Jersey. So, I reemphasize my
support.

Since the last hearing, we gathered information across the
country on the Medically Needy Program as we indicated we would do.
During'that period of time, I have been besieged by legislators and
other people, with questions as to the impact of the eligibility and
the numbers on this program. Many of them are concerned about the
implications, and they use the PAAD and Lifeline programs as examples.
They never expected those programs to reach the numbers we have reached
today. They want my absolute assurance that the numbers we come up
with, eligibility-wise and dollar-wise, will be the ultimate parameter
for the Medically Needy Program. Accordingly, we are now taking the
information we gathered and which we supplied to you-- Since that
report was compiled, we have additional information. We are now trying
to put together all of the variables of the Medically Needy Program,
right now using Option Two, to come up with a definitive answer on
dollars and eligibility.

We will conclude, and then 1 will have final
recommendations. Amongst the staff, we have our own opinions on what
should be provided; however, one month from today I will finalize my
recommendations for this particular Committee, as I promised.

There is one complication I think we should be aware of which
has been brought to my attention, and this is something I know the
Department of Health will probably speak to today. That is the problem
of the DRG waiver and whether that waiver for New. Jersey will be

approved. If it is not approved, the whole area of uncompensated care,



which at this time I think is about $240 million for the State of New
Jersey, will be the subject of great discussion. The Medically Needy
Program, if we go to the full-blown Option Four covering
inpatient/outpatient care, has the potential of dealiné with at least a
part of the uncompensated care. That variable, which right now is
unknown, is something we are all waiting anxiously to see what the
Federal govermnment will do &bout in terms of timing, because if we do
lose the waiver, inpatient hospital care becomes a viable alternative
for a certain percentage of that uncompensated care to bring some
Federal dollars back to the State of New Jersey in that area.

With that, I will leave you with the fact that 1 think we
have sufficient information now. We are synthesizing that
information. We are talking to our third-party intermediaries, our
carriers, and our claims processing people. We will be back in one
month to give you definitive numbers as best we can, selecting one of
the variables in each of the areas, the level of the asset test, or
whatever it might be. We will have that finalized as we see it, with
the kinds of services that will be provided, so that when it is given
to the Legislature the questions that I have been asked will be able to
be asked by this particular Committee. It will be, in fact, what we
have determined to the best of our ability. We will give it all of the
unknowns and the knowns, and will say, "This is what we think it will
be for the State of New Jersey." ]

With that, I have to get back to my office. I left the
meeting in limbo. Mr. Chairman, I thank you very much, and I thank
Assemblyman Deverin and the Committee for their leadership in this
very, very important area for the State of New Jersey.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Commissioner, before you leave-- I am
not going to question you because I know you are in a hurry, but there
is just one thing I would like to ask. I did say this morning that a
month would be suffibient; however, if you could get this to us at
least by the end of this month, 1 would appreciate it. We would like
to have it in our hands by than.

COMMISSIONER ALBANESE: I will make every effort to do that.

We will go out of our way to try to accomplish that.



ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I would appreciate it. Thank you for
appearing here this morning.

COMMISSIONER ALBANESE: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I have some questions for Medicaid.

COMMISSIONER ALBANESE: I will turn you over to Mr. Russo,
who is the Director of the Division of Medical Assistance and Health
Services for the State of New Jersey. He is responsible, within the
Department, for putting together this very, very important program.
Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Mr. Russo, do you wish to make a
statement before we begin our questioning?
THOMAS M. RUSSO: I would simply like to add to what the Commissioner
mentioned in his opening remarks. A considerable amount of work has
been done by the Department in studying the Medically Needy Program in
all of the states in this country that have such a program. In this
document we gave you entitled, "Facts About the Medically Needy
Program," there is a chart in the appendix that quantifies the results
of our study. It shows the states that have the program, it shows what
their thresholds are, and, very importantly, it shows what their error
rates have been in the program with reference to quality control. I
think what the Commissioner alluded to was the fact that the Department
needs to study this data a little bit more to come up with some firm
recommendations. What we are interested in doing for New Jersey is
recommending to you a medically needy program that will best meet the
needs of our citizens in this State in such a manner that it can be

administered in a sound fashion, with the least amount of error that
can possibly exist. That is a primary concern to us.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you. I have a few questions for
you, and I guess the Committee will have some too. Can you tell me,
are the Lifeline benefits considered as income?

MR. RUSSO: Lifeline benefits would not really be considered
as income for this particular program.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: In view of the problems with prescribed
drugs in the Community Care Program, should prescribed drugs be
included in the service package for the aged and the disabled?



MR. RUSSO: Well, that again is a decision item that would
have to be made. It could or could not be considered as a part of the
package. Prescription drugs are not contained in Option Two. If we
were to choose Option Two as it is currently formulated, it would not
cover prescription drugs, but that is a change that could be made
between now and December 31 when you receive the final recommendations.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I have a question from Doctor Villane,
who asks what that would cost with prescription drugs?

MR. RUSSO: To include the prescription drugs in the program?

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Yes.

MR. RUSSO: I think we have that somewhere if you will give
me a minute or two to try to find it. (Mr. Russo searches through his
papers.) Doing some quick arithmetic here, Mr. Chairman, we estimate
that to include prescription drugs in the program would cost a total of
$34 million, in addition to the $78 million you were discussing
earlier. The $34 million, however, would include every group that
could be included in the program.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Would that also include the Federal
match?

MR. RUSSO: That is a total figure, so it would include the

Federal match, yes.
ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: The $78 million would include the

Federal match?

MR. RUSSO: That is correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN DEVERIN: Mr. Russo, in those figures there are
some people who would fall into this eligibility category Option Two,
or any PAAD people. Are they in that dollars and cents you are talking
about, or are they excluded?

MR. RUSSO: They would be included in this figure.

ASSEMBLYMAN DEVERIN: So, it is not really an additional $34
million. It includes those who are in the--

MR. RUSSO: (interrupting) That is correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN  DEVERIN: So, in order to know what the
additional money would be, we would have to subtract those already in

the PAAD program.



MR. RUSSO: We would have to carve out those persons who are
in the PAAD now.

ASSEMBLYMAN DEVERIN: That could be a considerable sum.

MR. RUSSO: It could be, yes sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Is the out-patient hospital service an
ambulatory service?

ANN KDHLER: We are discussing that with the Federal government right
now, whether or not out-patient hospitals are required to be covered
under ambulatory care for children.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: What do the other states do with regard
to this?

MS. KOHLER: Most of the other states set up their Medically
Needy Programs prior to the change in Federal law which allows us to
structure a program for each individual client group. Therefore, most
of the other states have programs that mirror their regular Medicaid
programs under the old Federal rules where you had to provide hospital
services.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Mr. Russo, can you explain why the
income level for one-person and two-person households must be equal at
$391.667

MR. RUSSO: I am going to ask Ann Kohler to handle that
because that is a little on the technical side.

MS. KOHLER: The Federal regulations establishing an income
level for a medically needy program require that the level cannot be
higher than 133-1/3% of the AFDC payment level. Therefore, in New
Jersey, you have to take the AFDC payment level for a family of two and
increase it to 133-1/3%, which is the $392.00.

_ MR. RUSSO: 1 think one of the things we should understand is
that that level has to be 133-1/3% of the AFDC standard, not the SSI

standard. 1 think there may have been some confusion on that in the

past.
ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: All right then, the 133-1/3%, as 1
gather from your fact book, is about $590.66. Then, if you take it

over--
MS. KOHLER: (interrupting) No, it is about $392.00.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: 0Oh, $392.00.
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MS. KOHLER: 1It's not $500.00;

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: It's $392.00 and--

MS. KOHLER: (interrupting) That's right, for a one-person
or a two-person household.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Okay, .all right. Are there any other
questions from the Committee? Assemblyman Weidel?

ASSEMBLYMAN WEIDEL: I don't know whether this is proper
right now. Should we address the question of where the money is coming
from now, or should we wait? '

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: That is not the question now. We are on
the bill itself, not the funds.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEIDEL: Won't this Committee be dealing with
that?

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Yes, we will be dealing with that, sure.

MR. RUSSO: I think, Mr. Chairman, it might be helpful to the
Department if you could provide us with some of the areas you feel may
or should be included in a medically needy program. As you know, the
Commissioner indicated that he would come to you with recommendations.
However, I think it would be helpful to us also if possibly-- For
example, if you feel that prescription drugs should be included or
should not be included, possibly your Committee might make that known
to the Department, not necessarily today, but possibly sometime in the
interim between now and the time that the Department submits its formal
recommendations.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I feel that drugs should be included for
the AFDC population. I think we will be dealing with our part of the
bill. We will be making our recommendations, of course. That is why
we want to do it as soon as possible. We would be able to do what we
have to do within the next week, but we are trying to grant
Commissioner Albanese a few more weeks to really get his specific
recommendations in to us so we can get this bill moving. Assemblyman
Weidel?

ASSEMBLYMAN WEIDEL: Mr. Chairman, we have a lot of people
here. They are spending their time, and I think maybe we ought to

listen to the testimony from these groups and then go into our
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questions. I think we are putting the cart before the horse right
" now. They may answer some of our questions.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Assemblyman Weidel, these are Department
people we are talking to here, and I don't know whether they are going
to stay or not.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEIDEL: They are going to stay.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: We are just trying to get a few of our
questions for the Department out of the way. We do not intend to
question each and every one of them. 'But, we have a few questions we
want to ask the Department and the Department of Health in the
beginning. Then, of course, we are going to hear from the Public
Advocate's office. From there on, we will abide by your suggestion.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEIDEL: Okay.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Assemblyman Frelinghuysen?

ASSEMBLYMAN FRELINGHUYSEN: 1I'l]l pass.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I do not hear any other questions from
the Committee,‘ Mr. Russo. We will look forward to your specifics
within the next couple of weeks or so.

MR. RUSSO: We will be here for the duration of this hearing
in order to inform ourselves about the wishes of those who testify, so

that we will be in a better position to formulate a Department proposal

to you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you.

MR. RUSS0: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Is Mr. Scott Crawford here from the
Department of Health? (affirmative response) Good morning, Mr.
Crawford.

SCOTT CRAWFORD: Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee: My name is
Scott Crawford. I am a Reimbursement Specialist with the Office of
Health Planning and Resources Development in the State Department of
Health. Thank you for the opportunity to speak to you today concerning
Assembly Bill 608 on behalf of the Department.

The Department of Health supports the overall purpose of the
legislation, which would extend health care coverage to low-income

population groups who are presently not eligible for such assistance
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programs as Aid to Families with Dependent Children or Supplemental
Security Income, yet who are below the Federal poverty level.

When the Department appeared before this Committee last July
at the first public hearing on A-608, we explained to the Committee
that a significant amount of uncompensated care is incurred in our
urban hospitals. Approximately 20% of all uncompensated care is
related to outpatient services, while B0% is related to inpatient
services. At the present time, these services are available to needy
individuals in part through the Medicare waiver which the Department of
Health has received from the Health Care Financing Administration.

Following the Department testimony before this Committee last
July, Vice Chairman Watson asked the Department to work with the
Department of Human Services and the New Jersey Hospital Association in
an effort to estimate the number of people who use inpatient and
outpatient hospital services who may meet medically needy income and
assets standards, and to obtain information such as the age of such
people, type of services used, and the dollar amount of services
received. The Department itself does not have data with this level of
detail because it is not necessary for rate-setting purposes.
Department of Health staff has prepared a charity care survey form as a
suggested format which would not create an undue burden to the
hospitals, but which should provide fairly reliable information. This
charity survey form is broken up into several categories, such as the
patient's income, his or her number of dependents, age, sex, and race
of the patient, the type of services rendered, and the cost of the
services.

The Department has provided this survey form to both the
Department of Human Services and the New Jersey Hospital Association.
It is our understanding that the Hospital Association is presently
attempting to gather this information from various hospitals throughout
the State. However, to date, the hospitals have not been willing to
provide this information.

Under the State DRG system, there is full payment for the
treatment of the State's medically indigent who receive inpatient and
outpatient services in a hospital facility. The New Jersey DRG system
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is presently an all payer system and the costs of the coverage rendered
to the medically needy is spread across a wide range of payers, thereby
reducing the current cost to the State. This system is made possible
in part through the Medicare waiver which the Department of Health has
received from the Health Care Financing Administration of the
Department of Health and Human Services. In 1985, it is estimated that
uncompensated care in New Jersey hospitals will be approximately $225
million. Under the New Jersey system, Medicare shares in approximately
$90 million of this burden. However, under the national system which
went into effect in 46 states in October, 1983, Medicare does not share
in any of this cost. New Jersey's Mediéare waiver expires on
December 31, 1984.

On September 28, the Department of Health applied to the
Health Care Financing Administration for an extension of our waiver for
an additional three-year period. For the past several months,
Department of Health officials have been involved in ongoing
negotiations with the Health Care Financing Administration, and the
Department is doing everything possible to secure the waiver for an
additional three-year period. A renewal of our waiver would allow the
cost of treating the State's medically needy population to continue to
be paid under New Jersey's unique all payer system. A final decision
by HCFA is expected to be given prior to the end of December. As
stated at the outset, the Department of Health supports the overall
purpose of a medically needy program which this legislation would
provide. By increasing the medical care available to those people who
would qualify for assistance under a medically needy program, it would
enable many patients to receive the medical care necessary to keep them
from eventually needing hospital care which they are unable to pay for
and which is, therefore, picked up by other payers, including Medicare,
under the State's all payer system.

However, from the Department's standpoint, the medically
needy bill would be especially beneficial to the extent that it covered
outpatient and inpatient hospital services. It has been estimated that
the cost of providing both inpatient and outpatient hospital services

to all groups that could be covered in a medically needy program would
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be approximately $134 million. To the extent that this legislation
offers coverage for outpatient or inpatient hospital services for any
of the four options being considered under the bill, the effect would
be to reduce the pressure on the system that results from shifting
large amounts of uncompensated care costs to third-party payers,
including Medicare. Coverage for these services will be especially
critical if the State is unsuccessful in obtaining a waiver renewal for
an additional three-year period, or in the event that the waiver is not
renewed in 1987, when such a waiver would expire.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you. I have a couple of questions
I would like to ask you. In reviewing some of the share forms
submitted by hospitals for rate-setting purposes, many inner-city
hospitals indicate "No indigent base," or a very low indigent base.
How reliable is the information submitted by the hospitals?

MR. CRAWFORD: Generally speaking, the share forms are very
reliable. Certain elements in those forms which are not used for
rate-setting purposes may be less reliable than others. The extent of
medical indigency in urban hospitals varies considerably.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON:  Why have hospitals been reluctant to
cooperate with the survey? '

MR. CRAWFORD: I am not aware of all of the reasons. 1
believe that possibly the Hospital Association may be a better one to
comment on that. There are issues of patient confidentiality that have
to be addressed.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: How do they satisfy the Hill-Burton Act
when it comes to bad debts? Don't they have to give this information
to them?

MR. CRAWFORD: I don't think they have to give the extent of
information that is requested here. They have to document that the
patients treated were truly medically needy. That doesn't require
quite as many elements as are included in the form that we provided.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: You know, my feeling is that if it is to
their benefit, why wouldn't they cboperate with us?

MR. CRAWFORD: I really cannot say.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Suppose they lose the DRG in the end?

MR. CRAWFORD: Suppose we lose the waiver?
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ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Yes.

MR. CRAWFORD: There are many hospitals which would suffer.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: And, we are not ‘getting the cooperation
needed for this. Do you have any idea why?

MR. CRAWFORD: I have not been directly involved 1in
attempting to obtain this information from hospitals. The Hospital
Association has been carrying out this effort.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: All .right. Are there any other
questions? Assemblyman Frelinghuysen?

ASSEMBLYMAN FRELINGHUYSEN: I am a little bit confused. 1
presume we will hear from the Hospital Association. Do you mean to say
that in your Department you do not have this data?

MR. CRAWFORD: We do not have this data. The data that--

ASSEMBLYMAN FRELINGHUYSEN: (interrupting) Actually, at the
last public hearing, 1 asked whoever it was who represented the
Department of Health a question which may have led to the idea of a
charity survey. Where county governments have traditionally
contributed to the care of indigents within their county boundaries,
sums of money have gone to hospitals on a formula basis. I would
imagine that beneath the reams of paper in your Department -- with
Certificates of Need and all the other types of such applications --
there must be data on what the true indigent costs are. As the
Chairman said, it is really in the interest of the hospitals if, in
fact, it is an inordinate burden on them to carry such costs, even if
at present they are shared under an all payer system.’

You said in your statement that it is only the urban areas
that have indigent hospital costs. However, suburban settings have
these costs as well. Having been a Freeholder, I know we received, on
a regular basis, continuous complaints. To a certain extent, even
today under the DRG system, we receive complaints about continuing
indigent costs based on the number of individuals who come through the
emergency room doors of hospitals. I can't believe there isn't someone
in the bureaucracy of your Department who has those figures or who
can put his fingers on them. I see no reason why anyone would be

unwilling to share those figures if, in fact, we are going to be able
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to grapple with this overall legislationland what it means in terms of
providing health care. That was basically a question and a statement.
Thank you.

MR. CRAWFORD: We do have aggregate data concerning
uncompensated care. This data is collected by hospitals as they
attempt to bill or as they apply financial screens to determine that
patients are medically indigent. They collect data which is then
aggregated on a patient-specific basis, which is what the form that was
prepared requests. We have clinical information and billing
information. There is no indicator of whether the patient was
determined to be medically indigent on the patient-specific data we
currently have.

ASSEMBLYMAN FRELINGHUYSEN: I think your answer is a fair
one. I do not withdraw all of my comments, but I certainly understand
that when you are dealing with clients on a governmental level, you
have confidentiality. In fact, perhaps it is true, as you say, that
the hospitals have difficulty, inasmuch as people do have a right to
protect knowledge of their incomes. Maybe even the overall figures--
Have the overall figures you mentioned been submitted?

MR. CRAWFORD: I am not certain just what information has
been supplied.

ASSEMBLYMAN FRELINGHUYSEN: That in itself may be of value.
Surely someone could estimate what the other statistics may be. -

MR. HERSHBERG: The Health Department has supplied the staff
with certain information on indigent costs and other sources of
revenue. So, they have been providing information to staff concerning
hospital finances.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I would like to recognize the presence
of Assemblyman Kavanaugh, who has joined us today. Assemblyman, how
are you?

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Fine, thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Are there any other questions for Mr.
Crawford? (negative response) All right, thank you, Mr. Crawford.

May we have Mr. Edmund Abramovitz from the New Jersey

Hospital Association? Please state your name and title for the record.
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- EDMUND ABRAMOVITZ: Yes, sir. I am not Craig Becker, as the speakers'
list announces; I am Edmund Abramovitz, Assistant Vice President and
Director of Management Practices for the New Jersey Hospital
Association. I am here to, once again, underscore the Association's
support for Assembly Bill 608 and, also, to provide additional
information on the nature and extent of medical indigency in New
Jersey.

We believe that this Committee is certainly to be
congratulated for its foresight in placing emphasis on medical
indigency at this very critical time. Our support for such legislation
is longstanding, and takes on particular significance now as the
Federal government considers whether to renew New Jersey's Medicare
waiver. As you gentlemen are certainly now aware from the testimony of
the previous speakers, termination of our waiver could result in an end
to Medicare's participation in payment for indigent care. The
consequences for other. payers, for hospitals, and for State government
are enormous. Pro-active measures, carefully considered and
aggressively undertaken now, may be instrumental in minimizing a crisis
later, should Federal participation change.

The hospitals of our State have a long history of commitment
to health care for the poor. Unfortunately, this commitment pushed
many hospitals to the brink of financial collapse. Only by the
establishment of financial elements of cost which recognized indigent
care expenses was a crisis averted.

Since that time, the financial solvency of many of these
hospitals clearly has improved. What has not improved, however, is the
extent of need in the indigent populations served. Therefore, while
fiscal crisis in heavily indigent hospitals has been averted, we will
find ourselves quickly back where we were before adoption of Chapter 83
if we do not ensure continued support for indigent care.

Let me take a moment to illustrate the significance of
Medicare participation in the care of New Jersey's indigent and the
consequences of termination of that participation.

In the "average" New Jersey acute care hospital, 6% of all

patients cannot afford to pay for their own care, and are not
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beneficiaries of other programs. Thus, 94 patients, about 40 of whom
are Medicare beneficiaries, and 54 others, collectively pay for the
care of the six those care is otherwise uncompensated.

If we remove Medicare participation in uncohpensated care in
this "typical" hospital, that is, if the waiver expires, for every 100
patients, 89 non-Federal patients must pay for the uncompensated care
of 11.

Let us for a moment consider an all-too-familiar case: An
inner-city hospital, typically serving an aging Medicare population in
its aging neighborhood, along with a high indigent load. In this
particular, but by no means extreme example, 12% of the patients are
medically indigent and are unable to pay for their care. Under the
existing all payer system, the care of these 12 will be equally
distributed among the remaining 88 patients, 40 of whom are Medicare
beneficiaries, and about 48 of whom fall into all other categories. If
Medicare drops out of uncompensated care, the resulting ratio is
astonishing. Eighty patients will pay for the care of 20, or only four
paying non-Federal patients paying for each individual who cannot pay.

The inevitable result of such an imbalance is to render these
hospitals completely cost ineffective, uncompetitive in an age of
emphasis on competition, and potentially unable to attract paying
patients, thus widening the gap even further. The practical effect is
a regressive tax on the paying sick and their insurers, to answer a
societal problem which demands a far more broad-based public
commitment.

It is in this context that we add our qualified support to
Assembly Bill 608. The effect of this bill in its present form is that

by committing only $30 million, $35 million, or $36 million in State
funds, the Legislature can provide, through matching Federal funds, $60
million to $70 million in much needed health services to New Jersey's
citizens.

The total uncompensated care burden facing our hospitals,
presently spread among all payers, amounts to some $270 million. In
the face of this large free-care burden, the dollars provided by A-608

constitute 1little more than a down payment. Because of the bill's
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population targets, the principal beneficiaries will be prenatal and
perinatal patients, and foster children. Relatively little of the
$60 million will be spent on inpatient care. The amount spent for
ambulatory care will pay for services in many settings, not only in
hospitals. Thus, the bulk of the $270 million free-care bill will
remain untouched, and, therefore, will still be vulnerable to Federal
withdrawal from the system.

Commissioner Goldstein has confirmed Commissioner Albanese's
estimates that expansion of the Medically Needy Program could provide
over $134 million for hospital services, or half of the current total
of all uncompensated care costs. While this $134 million is presently
absorbed entirely by New Jersey's citizens and businesses, the
medically needy option would shift half of this burden to the Federal
government. Two dollars of benefits result from every State dollar
spent. Your actions can help to relieve the hidden tax imposed on the
paying sick, their families, and their employers at only half the cost
" of the program's real benefit. And, we reduce New Jersey's reliance on
a Medicare waiver to support indigent care.

We urge you to adopt Assembly Bill 608, to expand its
provisions, and to provide an appropriate funding level for a
comprehensive medically needy plan. Gentlemen, I am prepared to take
your questions.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you. I think Medicaid should also
be included in your statement, along with Medicare, with regard to
indigent costs. .

According to the data we have received on our share forms,
the number of indigent patient days is only 1.6% for all hospitals from
which we have gotten our information. Yet, you cite 6% indigent care.
Again, I must ask, how reliable is the data supplied to the Health
Department on indigent care?

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: 1 guess 1 really have to support what the
Health Department speaker said, which is that data supplied on a cost
accounting basis-- We expect that this is reliable information;
however, it is sort of an -- if not an apples and oranges question --

an oranges and tangerines question, because there may be approximately
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% of days covered, but the costs can be measured in other ways. I am
not referring to patient days, but to costs. Indeed, if the Medicare
patient load is perhaps sicker or if it is composed of an outpatient
component, which certainly it is, there are a lot of costs beyond a

% free-care burden. So, it is very conceivable that while patient
days might account for only 1.6%, or in that neighborhood of indigent
days, indeed, the costs might be very much higher.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: From what I gather, you do not have much
confidence in the auditing of patient days that we requested. We get
back 1.6% of it; in your testimony, you said it is 6%. There is a big
difference there.

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: Sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: That alone tells me something. The
information that has been gathered, with your conflicting information
here this morning, is not reliable.

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: Well, I think what I am saying, Assemblyman
Watson, is that while the patient days may account for 1.6%, the costs
-- because the total costs of the indigent care package also include
ambulatory outpatient care -- might push that total up to more like 6%
in the aggregate statewide. So, I do not think the figures are
necessarily in conflict. The costs associated with those days might
indeed be higher than the raw number of days would indicate.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Sir, if they are not accurate in
reporting their inpatient days, how accurate are they in their cost
factor?

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: Well, I am not suggesting that the inpatient
day number is inaccurate. What I am saying is, that may indeed be the
number of days. I am not in a position to be able to comment on the
specific information contained in the share reports. I am not a
financial analyst. Therefore, I think I would have to say to the
Committee that we would be happy to work with the Department to try to
purify those numbers, if they are, indeed, in conflict. My position is
that it is not inconceivable that 1.6% of the days would result in 6%
of the costs. The 1.6% of the days does not necessarily have to equate
to 1.6% of the costs, because the patient days have no factor in them

for ambulatory outpatient care.
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ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I know we received zero patient days
from St. Joseph's Hospital in Paterson. Does that seem logical to you?

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: No, it does not -- not nearly. I cannot
explain that. It may be a reporting problem; it might even be a
stenographic problem. I really cannot explain that, but it is
something we would be prepared to work with the Department to purify.
Indeed, a number like that is an error. Very clearly, St. Joseph's
Hospital has a great deal more than zero patient days for indigent
care.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I know the Department of Health has
stated that the hospitals have really not cooperated in the survey.
Would you agree with that?

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: I would certainly not agree. I would like
to set‘the record straight on that matter. We have been the recipient
of information copies, through the courtesy of both Commissioner
Albanese and Commissioner Goldstein, of correspondence which has
circulated between their offices on the preparation of the survey form
you have requested. However, at no time was the participation of the
New Jersey Hospital Association solicited in the development of that
form. Indeed, we just received a copy of what they presume might be
the final document on November 16. That is not really a very long time
for us to have reacted to the survey.

We stand ready to participate at any time. We think the
present survey form as sent to us -- and, by the way, that came as an
information copy -- is flawed. We do not believe it will get you the
informatiom you want to receive in the form it presently takes. We
think there may even be better ways to come up with the information.
Certainly, we think there are problems with patient confidentiality. I
suspect that none of you gentlemen on the Committee would very much
appreciate a request from an admitting clerk upon entering a hospital
asking you how much you make. That is a difficult question to put to
people. There is really no way to tell prospectively, just by looking
at an individual, whether or not he is going to fall into the indigent
care category. Therefore, we are forced to ask everyone that question,

and we are kind of sensitive about that. Indeed, a couple of the
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hospitals with whom we shared that information told us candidly that
upon review of the document with their legal counsel, they are very
concerned about the appropriateness and legality of responding to the
survey as it is presently constructed.

Now, that by no means suggests that we are unwilling to
cooperate. We are willing now, as we have consistently been, to work
up a form that we can all live with;‘which would give this Committee
the information it needs, but would not embarrass patients nor put
hospitals in a potentially threatening legal position. We will do
that.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I have a couple of other questions, but
I am going to hold them until my Committee members have had a chance to
ask their questions. Assemblyman Villane?

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: No questions.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Assemblyman Frelinghuysen?

ASSEMBLYMAN FRELINGHUYSEN: I have no way of knowing through
your comments about the inappropriateness of the indigent care survey.
But, since you have offered, perhaps the Committee should take you up
on this. If, in fact, you would like to make up a survey of your own,
knowing generally what we are trying to get in the way of information
that would be valuable to this Committee in reaching some conclusions,
I, for one, would certainly seek your assistance in gathering whatever
data we could get from hospitals in different settings. Like it or
not, we are all in this business together. If we are going to control
health care costs, as well as expand health care services, we have to
be in it together. So, if there is no objection, I would certainly
like to get something from you in the way of data gathering, so we can
put to rest any concerns about the lack of cooperation and other
things. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I would officially ask that of you,
too. Would you kindly send it to the Chair?

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: Certainly.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Hospitals must collect the income
information for the Hill-Burton Act. Is that correct?

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: Yes, that is correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: And, to verify bad debts, right?
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MR. ABRAMOVITZ: That is correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Why does this survey pose an additional
problem, particularly since we are trying to help hospitals?

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: The difficulty is that Hill-Burton
information, as the previous speaker suggested, is always aggregated.
It is not retained in the form of individual patient information, which
is necessary with the form which the Department has devised because it
matches income level with particular information on charges that an
individual accrues while hospitalized. Therefore, it must be
maintained on an individual basis. That is one problem.

The second difficulty is, we collect Hill-Burton information
from an individual who comes in and volunteers to the institution, "I
believe I quality for Hill-Burton care because I cannot pay my bill."
The individual has been forthright and has told us that he anticipates
a problem. To get a much more accurate figure -- prospectively, if you
will -- on which of these patients will be unable to pay for the care,
we are forced to ask this potentially embarrassing question of everyone
who comes through the door. So, there is a substantial difference in
those two kinds of surveys.

In addition, when we speak of bad debts rather than free
care, it is sometimes impossible, prospectively, to determine which
particular case is going to turn into a bad debt case. So, very often
we find that information out long after the patient has left our care
and far too late to be able to complete the Department's survey. We
think those are some of the complicating factors.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Assemblyman Kavanaugh?

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: I have one question for you, sir. Is
it an embarrassing situation if someone is coming into your place of
business -- and that is what a hospital is -- and you ask them if they
can afford to pay? 1 have never been able to go into a hospital and
just get a free ride upstairs without putting out all my credentials.

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: That's right, but we never ask you what your
income level is. That is what--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: (interrupting) Is that the only
thing you find offensive on the survey?

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: That is the principal thing.
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Could you enumerate the things you
find offensive on the survey?

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: The difficulty is, we have two documents in
our hands. The Department has given us two different surveys, and we
are not entirely sure which one they want to use. That is the single
most offensive piece of information. There may be others that
individual hospitals might find difficult but, from our view, that is
the most troublesome one. However, we also concede that without that
information, the survey becomes somewhat pointless. I think we may be
able to get around the apparent difficulty by finding other alternative
sources for this information. We think the Department may find, with
our cooperation, that there are places in the data base where
equivalent information may be extracted. We are not certain about
that, but we think a little digging might get us the information we
need without having to go to these lengths.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Mr. Abramovitz, this information is
certainly needed. It is needed to the extent that this survey was sent
out to the hospitals, for Human Services, and for the Department of
Health to answer our questions as best as possible, so we might be able
to get on with business. Before you leave, I would like to let you
know that I think in dealing with this piece of legislation, the
Legislature should tighten up on the viability of the hospitals in
getting us better accountability and more documentation on how our
money 1is being spent. We have not gotten the kind of information
necessary here to enable us to tighten up a good bill. We could have

had better help.
Our hearings have been held over four or five months, and 1

think that has been enough time for you to get back to us. We are not
dragging our feet. It is the information we have requested, which is
not here, that is going to make us drag our feet. We are trying to do
the best we can for the people of this State, while also helping the
hospitals, and all others, to do their jobs as easily as possible.
This is beginning to be as difficult as possible. 1 don't see why we

can't get this kind of information.
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If you can, within the next few days -- because we are going
to be pushing this bill out -- please try to get us some information
that will be a positive kind of a thing so we might be able to use it
to make this a better bill.

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: Mr. Chairman, we couldn't agree with you
more. However, our attempt is just to set the record straight.
Considering the fact that we still have two conflicting documents in
our hands, which were provided by the Department of Health, considering
that they have been in our hands for dnly two and a -half weeks, we do
not think the difficulty in compliance rests on the shoulders of the
hospitals of this State. In the testimony of Mr. Becker, who met with
you in July, we have committed the Association to the support of your
data-gathering activities, and that commitment still stands. However,
we need some help also. We are willing to do whatever we can as soon
as we get a survey instrument from the departments in State government
which they feel will gather the data.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSUN: That would be my next question to you.
Isn't it possible for you, or someone from your Association, to sit
down with the departments and hammer this thing out?

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: Absolutely.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I would like to see that done within the
next couple of weeks or so, so we will be able to move this bill.

MR. ABRAMOVITZ: We stand ready, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you for your appearance here
today.

Our next speaker will be Mr. Ed Tetelman from the Department
of the Public Advocate.

EDWARD H. TETELMAN: I would like to thank the Committee for the
opportunity to speak to you today about the Medically Needy Program,
and congratulate you on the interest you have shown on this, asking
what I think are some very important and pointed questions. Also, I
would like to say that providing that $125,000 to Human Services is
important, so that the administrative mechanism can get moving and we

can finally get this long-needed legislation through.
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We have supported the Medically Needy Program for about 10
years now trying to get it established. As we see it, it covers a
number of groups. It covers children, it covers disabled individuals,
and it covers the elderly. We also think it should cover the single
parents of those children, because if a parent is ill, he or she is not
going to be able to take very good care of the child. Unlike
Commissioner Albanese, we think that that group should also be covered,
and that is permitted under the Federal legislation.

The services that are provided, as have been talked about,
are incremental at this point. First, we would like to see the
ambulatory services covered in this State. They are aimed at keeping
individuals out of hospitals. They are to keep them ambulatory, to
take preventive steps, and to make sure that people can meet their
potentials, obtain jobs, go to school, and do well in school. We would
recommend that the following types of services be covered for children:
outpatient clinic services, laboratory and x-ray, freestanding clinic
services, drug services for the children and single parents, dental
services, optometric services, optical appliances, prosthesis and
orthotic devices, medical transportation, medical equipment, and the
Early Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment Program, the only
program paid for by the Federal govermment that is really preventive.
Included under this program, the Federal govermnment mandates postnatal
care, prenatal care, and delivery services for pregnant women.

We would also like to see a similar complementary program of
services provided for single parents. For the disabled and elderly,

the services we have examined are home health care, laboratory/x-ray
services, clinic services, medical day care, physicians' services,

medical transportation, and medical supplies and equipment. We would
also include dental care, podiatric care, eyeglasses, and chiropractic
care. Those are the types of things we think it is important to cover.

In terms of costs, the Department of Human Services has
estimated costs on a number of levels. The types of services we are
talking about here fall most closely to their Option Three, which they
estimate to be higher than Option Two, which is about $70 million. In
looking at this and trying to determine what kind of costs there are
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out there, we called the State of Massachusetts. Massachusetts has a
Medically Needy Program which is similar in its complement to what New
Jersey provides and whom we would cover. We asked them what the costs
would be and what the number of eligibles is. They covered 79,011
medically needy eligibles in Massachusetts as of Fiscal Year 1983.

To break down some of the costs they have actually accrued in
their state, physician care cost them $8.9 million; drug services,
which included the elderly, cost them $17.6 million; outpatient
services cost $11.2 million; medical equipment was $2.5 million; home
health services were $3.4 million; dental care was $3.2 million;
laboratory services were $1.1 million; and, physical therapy and other
services like that were $2.5 million. This adds up, if we are talking
about ambulatory services, to $50.4 million. If you take out the drug
component -- because we haven't split it out -- it reduces the cost of
their program to $32.8 million, which is quite a bit different than the
estimates we have 'seen.

We also agree that by providing a medically needy program, it
is going to shift people out of the outpatient clinics in the
hospitals. They are going to be able to obtain care from physicians
who normally do not get reimbursed for indigent care, so there is an
incentive not to deliver that kind of care.

 We also note that this is a program that will bring Federal
dollars back to New Jersey. That is one of the cries we have heard
constantly in this State; even the Governor has commented on it. This
is an opportunity for us to bring Federal dollars back. And, most
importantly, this is the time to provide access to necessary services
to low-income people, to children, to their parents, and to the
disabled and elderly people who have gone without, and who often wait
until they are very, very ill before they seek care in a hospital.

I am open for any questions at this point.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you, Mr. Tetelman. First, I would
like to have a copy of what you read.

MR. TETELMAN: They are just notes, but I can provide you
with them.
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ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Will you please send that to us in
writing, through the Chair, within the next week? You named different
areas you would like to see covered. What about caretaker relatives?

MR. TETELMAN: I think that depends on their incomes. You
might want to look at that. 1If, in fact, the caretaker relative had
the resources by which to cover the services, then I do not think we
would want to cover that. I don't think that technically it is a
question of whether or not you can help or even cover those
individuals. .

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: You have heard our concerns about
documentation for the hospitals. Do you share our concerns?

MR. TETELMAN: I share your concerns very much. In fact, I
am quite familiar with what the Hill-Burton Act requires, and I know
what the regulations say. The regulations say that when an individual
indicates that he or she cannot pay for care, the hospital then has to
of fer them uncompensated care. It does not say that you always have to
ask when a person comes in. However, if a person indicates that he or
she does not have a job, or does not have insurance, then I think the
statement should be made, "Well, you might qualify for uncompensated
care. We request that you apply for this." Now, when you are
determining uncompensated care, you are required to ask for income.
That is the way you determine if someone is eligible, both under
Chapter 83 and under Hill-Burton. 1 don't see how you can get out from
under asking for that kind of information. It may not be aggregated on
an individual basis, but you could have done some kind of a service

between July and now to find out that information.
ASSEMBLYMAN  WATSON: Can you provide wus with vyour

recommendations within the next seven days?

MR. TETELMAN: Yes, I would be happy to. If you have other
questions you would like me to respond to which would be within our
area of expertise, I would be happy to do that, also.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Do any of the Committee members wish to
ask Mr. Tetelman any questions? (negative response) All right, thank
you, Mr. Tetelman.

MR. TETELMAN: Thank you very much.
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ASSEMBLYMAN. WATSON: Our next witness is Ann Zahora, the
Director of the Division on Aging. Good morning, Ms. Zahora. I guess
I should say "Good afternoon," since it's 12:10 p.m.

ANN ZAHORA: Good afternoon, Assemblyman.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Do you have a written statement?

MS. ZAHORA: I have some notes. I will get a written
statement to you tomorrow.

I am Ann Zahora, the Director of the New Jersey--

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: (interrﬁpting) Would you mind turning
your microphone on? (indicates button on amplification microphone)
Just push the button.

MS. ZAHORA: I am Ann Zahora, Director of the New Jersey
State Division on Aging. I thank you for the opportunity to speak on
Assembly Bill 608.

The medically needy concept, as you well know, has been
around for quite some time. At the Division, we certainly favor this
concept. No ohe can dispute the fact that certain groups, among them
the elderly, often go without proper medical care. This, as you know,
is due to low incomes, as well as the escalating cost of health care.

We sadly agree that medical care is often unavailable to
people who live just above the poverty level and sometimes beyond. We
do not believe, however, that passing A-608 in its present form will
solve this problem. We feel this way because, first of all, the cost
estimates for this program are quite soft. The range of estimates is
incredible. This indicates that budgeting would be a difficult, if not
next-to-impossible, task. This is due to an inability to estimate
costs up front and year-to-year variations. Sound budget practices
certainly require budgeting for this program at the highest range. In
our opinion, this would be extremely expensive. In addition, the
estimated costs for administration are extremely high.

This bill, A-608, is quite loose in its present form. We
certainly hope you will look at it closely, in order to pull it
together. FEarlier today, I was pleased to hear that you are, in fact,

accepting amendments to do this.
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Another issue is that of casino funds, or the proposed
funding sources for our elderly and disabled recipients. 1 was also
pleased to hear Assemblyman Deverin say this would be looked into and,
perhaps, changed. Across the State, we are concerned about the use of
the casino funds, and we so testified at a casino hearing in Atlantic
City last week. We are not quite sure, with regard to the the casino
moneys as they stand now, that there would be enough money available
to fund a portion of a program with broad parameters, such as this. We
certainly don't want programs that are éurrently funded with this money
to be cut back or eliminated.

We also ask that you consider the mood in Washinton, which
appears to favor cuts in spending. As you well know, any cuts in
Federal spending will affect aid to the states. Of course, the Federal
deficit is also being watched closely. We are concerned with this
mood, because the bill contains a 50/50 State-Federal match. At this
time, given the way Washington is looking at funding situations, that
is a rather precarious'notion. We certainly would not want the State
to end up holding the entire financial bag for this program. We ask
that you examine this position carefully.

Perhaps you may consider some additional concerns of ours.
One is that real efforts be made to control the rising costs of medical
care. We feel these costs are almost as much to blame for people not
being able to afford medical care as are low incomes.

Second, those of us in the Division, and older people with
whom we have spoken, feel that home health care does need to be
expanded. In our opinion, the need for home health care knows no
bounds. The elderly will definitely be served if home health care is
made more readily available. Mr. Chairman, the Division on Aging in
the Department of Community Affairs and the Task Force on Legislative
Concerns of the Elderly, which is made up of numerous senior-citizen
organizations, question this legislation in its current form while
favoring home health care and the medically needy concept.

In summary, we are most concerned about the efficiency,
costs, and effect of A-608 on other valuable programs that serve the

seniors of our State. I hope that Commissioner Albanese's report,
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which I understand you will receive in a few weeks, will also address
some of our concerns. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you, Ms. Zahora. We have a few
questions for you. Number one, I have in my hand a press release that
was issued prior to your testimony today before this Committee. If you
have any confidence in this Committee at all--

MS. ZAHORA: (interrupting) Pardon me?

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: If, as you have indicated, you have any
confidence in this Committee at all, you have issued a press release
that was--

MS. ZAHORA: (interrupting) I had asked that it not be
released.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Then how was it distributed? How is it
that I came into possession of it?

MS. ZAHORA: I do not know how you received it, sir. At 9:00
a.m. today I asked that it not be released. I do not know how you
received it. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Was it not released with a copy of your
testimony?

MS. ZAHORA: As I said, it was set to go this morning, and at
9:00 a.m. I asked that it not be released. 1 cannot explain how you
received it.

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Distribution was not made through
normal channels then, as far as you know, other than the copy that came
to the Committee?

MS. ZAHORA: To the best of my knowledge, that is correct. 1
was unaware that you had this copy. 1 specifically asked that nothing
be sent to anyone, so I really don't know how you got it.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: It is the Committee's intention, as you
know, to tighten up this bill. We have not indicated from what source
we are going to fund this bill, or whether it will come from casino
funds. How would you feel about this funding coming from the surplus?

MS. ZAHORA: That would be fine. As I indicated earlier, our
concern about casino funds and the use thereof is that they are being
used in a patchwork fashion. If we pull casino moneys here and there
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for so many things, we are going to have a problem down the line. This
is, essentially, what we are trying to avoid.

If we don't step back and take a good, hard look at what the
casino moneys are paying for, and if these moneys continue to
proliferate, we are concerned that in a few years there will have to be
a cutback in valuable, worthwhile programs for the elderly and the
disabled. In our opinion, if you can use surplus moneys for this and
not touch the Casino Revenue Fund, that would be most acceptable.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: What happens when the surplus dries up?

MS. ZAHORA: Eventually, I suppose, you would have to
consider additional taxes. I am not really wise enough to answer that
question. All of those things would have to be considered by someone
more fiscally oriented than I. In addressing this, I asked that we
look at the total cost and cost-effectiveness of it, no matter where
the money comes from. I think we must be very careful in our planning
for the future.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Ms. Zahora, did you testify before the
Corrections, Health, and Human Services Committee on A-6087?

MS. ZAHORA: I did not. No, I did not.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Did someone from the Division testify?

MS. ZAHORA: At your last hearing in the summertime?

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: At Assemblyman Otlowski's Committee's
hearing.

MS. ZAHORA: I would have to go back and check, sir. I
really cannot say.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: You are not aware that you testified for
this bill?

MS. ZAHORA: We may have testified. 1 am sorry that I don't
know whether we did or not.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: An important piece of legislation like
this--

MS. ZAHORA: (interrupting) I know it is important, but I--

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON:  (continuing) --with your feelings on
it, and you don't know whether your Division testified?

MS. ZAHORA: 1 am embarrassed that I do not have the answer

for you. We have a legislative aide, and I believe she did testify.
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ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Do you have someone in the room that
could get me the answer to--

MS. ZAHORA: (interrupting) I don't have anyone in the room,
sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON:  (continuing) --whether you testified
favorably or unfavorably on this bill?

MS. ZAHORA: I have no one else in the room.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Mr. Chairman, may I interrupt?

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Certainly, Dr. Villane.

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Mr. Chairman, I regret that the press
release was issued like that. We don't know who is responsible, but we
will certainly look into it. VYou can tell by the attendance of the
Republican members of this Committee today that we are very anxious and
concerned about the bill. We want to hammer-out a piece of legislation
that will address the concerns of the medically needy. We have no
opinion. We are here to listen, form an opinion, and work with both
you, Mr. Chairman and .the sponsor of the bill. We regret that the
press release was issued.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you, Dr. Villane. I bhave one
other question for the Division. The State of New Jersey previously
picked up nearly 8% of the cost of Federal Medicaid cutbacks. How did
the Division feel about that?

MS. ZAHORA: I am not sure I understand what you mean.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: You expressed a concern that the State
would be left holding the financial bag. The State, in fact, picked up
about an 8% cutback in these funds, so I believe we have acted
responsibly. We have tried to do what we are supposed to do. I
regret, and I am a little surprised, that something like this would
happen before we could have this hearing. I accept your statement,
Dr. Villane. Would any other members of the Committee care to question
the Director of the Division on Aging? Assemblyman Kavanaugh?

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: I believe the concern expressed by
the Director is substantive. It is a concern that has been expressed
to me and other members of the Legislature. (motions to nearest
microphone, in front of Assemblyman Weidel) Would you just push that

button, please, Karl?
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ASSEMBLYMAN WEIDEL: That's 'the recorder. Try the other
one. (indicates amplification microphone)

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: It is disconnected.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEIDEL: It may not be. It may be connected to
another unit. (pushes button) Did it come on?

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Yes. What has been expressed by the
Director this morning is substantive because of the concerns that have
been voiced by senior citizens throughout the State. Assemblyman
Watson alluded to the fact that we don't know whether we are going to
take this funding from the surplus or whether it will come from casino
revenues. The amount of expenditures we have had in recent years
coupled with proposed legislation now in the hopper exceeds $300
million. That is a staggering sum. You are aware, I am sure, that I
have an ACR in to freeze any future expenditures of casino revenues
until we get input from the seniors.

We often go in the other direction. We tell individuals how
we are going to spend their money. This money belongs to the seniors
and the disabled. We have to be aware of that. The bill before us at
this public hearing today, A-608, has a great deal of merit, but we
should also remember the time when we sat back and talked about the PAA
program. We had sheets with facts and figures. We were going to spend
$5-$6 million. Today we have an excess of $50 million. These are the
concerns 1 have.

We have talked of $38 million that would be spent and of
matching funds. That is with Option Two. We have people here today

who have major concerns about how they are going to pay for their
hospital care. We have heard concerns expressed by seniors who have

disabled children. Who will take care of their children when these
seniors pass away? All of these things concern us as legislators.

We must be open-minded as we discuss this piece of legislation.
We must ask if this is the best direction to take, or if there are
other ways to go. We must take it all and make it a cohesive group,
rather than just say, "This is it. We're going to spend this $38

million, then next week we are going to look at something else."
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' Down the line, priorities will have to be established. We
will have to look at what is in the best interest of the seniors and
the disabled of the State, because this is not going to continue. We
can see a leveling-off in the revenues we are receiving from the casino
industry. This year, we had to dip into $5 million of the surplus in
that account in order to meet the programs that are already on the
board.

As you very well stated, in a few years things that are of
utmost importance in the minds of the seniors and the disabled will
have to be denied them because the money will have run out. We are not
going to able to continue to spend, spend, spend, because the money is
not going to continue to grow in the way it has during the last few
years in Atlantic City. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you, Assemblyman. Dr. Villane or
Assemblyman Frelinghuysen? (shake their heads negatively, indicating
they have no further comments) I would like to ask you one other
question. I would also like for you to get me some information. Would
you send us the information that was used in your presentation before
Assemblyman Otlowski's Committee, with regard to this bill and your
testimony? I would like to have that. Would you send it to the
Chair? (witness nods affirmatively) Now, you mentioned a Committee
that you testified before in Atlantic City.

MS.  ZAHORA: (interrupting) That was Assemblyman
Kavanaugh's.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Oh, it was an Ad Hoc Committee, a
Standing Committee?

COMMITTEE MEMBER: It was an Ad Hoc Committee.

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: I would like to mention this
briefly, and I don't want to get into any type of political debate with
you, John--

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: (interrupting) No, no. I will not go
into the--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH:  (continuing) --but it is in this
interest. As you know, the problem has come about that there have been
SCRs on the books, the intents of which have failed to be fulfilled.
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It has now been 20 months. The Commission finally has the membership.
Elections are coming up next year. There 1is going to be a
State-of-the-State message. There was concern when members of a
Republican Task Force went to Atlantic City. We are now going to
Hackensack. We want to get more input from the seniors because we feel
there has been inaction on the part of the Legislature. We are not out
to make waves. It is something we are concerned about since the
dollars are no longer coming in. ‘

We have spoken to many people and we have received hundreds
of responses. There are concerns out there. There have been major
concerns expressed by the seniors, with regard to priorities. I think
it is also important for us to know when that 16-member Task Force will
start. As I said, it was a session when nothing happened. Then we
went into a second session and nothing happened. In the hope that we
will see some action, the Speaker just the other day finally finished
staffing, as far as appointments go.

We met in Atlantic City, where the money is, and we heard the
problems. Almost wunanimously, the seniors realize that there is
funding, but they want it properly allocated so it doesn't deplete to
the point where their needs will be denied in the future. The longer
we stay here -- the longer we delay -- the sooner the time will come
when we will be senior citizens. When that time comes, I want to make
sure that any of my friends who might be broke will have their needs
taken care of, so they will not be institutionalized or put out of
their homes. These are our major concerns. I know that you fully

agree with those.
ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Because it was stated earlier as an

Assembly Committee, I want to be sure it is noted on the record that it
was a Standing Committee, an Ad Hoc Committee. I don't hear any other
Committee member wanting to ask questions, so I would like to thank you
for your appearance here this afternoon.

MS. ZAHORA: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Our next witness is Doris B. Nash, the
Public Affairs Director of Cancer Care, Inc. Is Ms. Nash in the room?
DORIS B. NASH: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Would you have a seat, please?
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MS. NASH: Should I press the button? (indicates microphone)

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Press the button, and you're on.
(laughter) l

MS. NASH: Mr. William C. Pelster, the Chairman of our Public
Affairs Committee and a member of the Board of Trustees, regrets that
he could not be here to testify today. I am taking his place. In a
sense, he is my boss on the staff of the Public Affairs Committee,
which takes positions on public-policy issues. We are pleased to have
the opportunity to address A-608, the concept of which we heartily
endorse. Since this marks the first time we have presented public
‘testimony in the State of New Jersey, a brief introductory description
of our organization seems necessary. '

For over 40 years, Cancer Care has provided social work
counseling to cancer patients and their families. A professional staff
helps families through the crises of cancer by providing individual and
group counseling to patients, relatives, and concerned friends.
Bereavement couhseling<is also available. Our social workers assist
families in planning for the patients' care at home when it is
medically feasible. Some financial assistance is available, when
appropriate, to help self-supporting families maintain care-at-home
plans for the patients.

Our goals are to strengthen the families' abilities to cope
with the patients' illnesses and to enhance the quality of life for the
patients.

We receive no government funding or third-party
reimbursements; we rely solely on contributions from the public,
foundations, fund-raising events, volunteer chapters, and bequests.

We have traditionally offered direct services to those
persons who live in areas of northern New Jersey near New York City.
In October, 1982, in an effort to reach more New Jersey residents, we
opened a part-time office there. Shortly thereafter, in July, 1983, we
opened a full-time office in Emerson. These offices have enabled us to
serve 14 New Jersey counties. We began with one part-time social
worker; so rapidly has our patient load increased, we now have four

full-time social workers.

38



I would like to introduce Helene Feldman, the Social Work
Supervisor from our New Jersey branch. She came to Cancer Care after
15 years with the Hospital Center in Orange, where she was Director of
Social Services. She will present a more graphic description of our
work in New Jersey, and she will be able to explain why a medically
needy category is essential. I want to remind you that she and her
staff are really on the firing line in that New Jersey office. Thank
you.

HELENE FELDMAN: As Mrs. Nash stated--

ASSEMBLMAN WATSON:  (interrupting) Would you mind pressing
your button there, please? (indicates microphone)

MS. FELDMAN: (turns microphone on) As Mrs. Nash stated, the
volume of work in New Jersey has rapidly increased. A vivid way of
describing this would be to present statistics, beginning with those
from the 1982-83 fiscal year, during which a total of $87,437 was
shared with patients and their families to help defray the cost of home
care plans; thié represénted 12.7% of our agency's total disbursement.
Our 1983-84 disbursements amounted to $152,640, or 19% of the agency's
total disbursement. The figures for July 1 through November 16, 1984,
indicate that $71,292 was given to 107 patients and families; this
represents 24% of Cancer Care's total disbursement for this year.

The statistics we have offered could easily be seen as a
reflection of the desperate situation of so many New Jersey cancer
patients, and at least some of these situations can be attributed to
the lack of a medically needy category that would allow for Medicaid
assistance.

We have found that approximately 23% of the patients we
serve in New Jersey have monthly incomes of $600 or less. Some of
these patients may be eligible for nursing-home placement, but they
want to stay in their private homes. They should be enabled to realize
that wish.

Needless to say, our social workers and the families they
serve constantly cope with the harsh realities -- financial and
emotional -- that frequently accompany catastropic illnesses, such as

cancer. The most heart-rending situations are those which involve
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families with extremely low incomes, particularly the
under-$600-a-month group and/or those whose assets have been severely
depleted because of the illness. These families often need at-home
care for the patients, but cannot possibly afford it on their own. We
assist them, but we find their needs to be much greater than a
voluntary-community agency can fully assume.

Many of the families we see are so impoverished by the
illness that the remainder of their incomes approach the defined
welfare level, which is actually below the poverty level. Many of them
are patients, described by the Home Health Agency Assembly in its
testimony at the first hearing as those who no longer qualify for
Medicare home health benefits or other third-party reimbursement. We
assist many of these patients, and home health agencies frequently make
referrals to us in advance of the need, because they can forecast just
how far the reimbursed benefits will go.

Permit me to offer several case illustrations for which a
medically needy>category would be helpful. In the first I will profile
a couple who are in their late 70s. The patient has bone cancer with
metastasis to the pelvis and hip, as well as osteoarthritis and severe
pain. The husband has emphysema and cannot be of help to his
bedridden wife. Their income is $724 a month from Social Security;
they have Medicare and Blue Cross-Blue Shield supplementary coverage.
The couple's children, although weighed down with their own familial
responsibilities, take turns staying with the couple overnight and
generally overseeing the situation. Medicare helps with nine hours of
home health aid services a week, because the patient is deemed to need
skilled nursing supervision. We are helping the family pay for
additional hours of care, which are desperately needed.

Another situation involves a family that consists of a
42-year-old divorced woman who was operated on for cervical cancer, her
15-year-old son, and her 73-year-old father. The father has a
colostomy because of colon cancer, is paralyzed from a stroke, and
suffers from chronic heart failure. He receives $359 a month from
Social Security. The daughter's take-home pay as a waitress in a local
diner is only $500 a month. She has no health-insurance coverage. In
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an arrangement with the hospital, she is paying off the cost of her
surgery. The father needs daily help with his colostomy; the daughter
is the person who performs this function. Since Medicare does not
consider him to require skilled services, he was deemed ineligible for
any home health services during his daughter's hospitalization. We
helped him pay for home care during that critical period of time
between his daughter's surgery and her recuperation.

In a third case, a 73-year-old widower lived alone and
suffered from colon cancer, diabetes, arteriosclerotic heart disease,
and osteoporosis. His income was $437 a month. He had $6,000 in
medical debts. His son and daughter-in-law finally took him into their
home, but their work schedules meant that additional help with home
care services was needed. We shared the cost of this with them and,
eventually, when he became terminally ill, there were Medicare-covered
home health visits.

These and other poor patients should be given the
opportunities to receive assistance from Medicaid, and home care
services should be made available to them since this is so frequently
the most desperate need. The lack of availability of Medicaid for
these marginal-income families is usually accompanied by less-frequent
medical care, particularly on an out-patient basis, and by an
exacerbation of the many problems with which these patients and their
families have been struggling.

It is important to mention that the DRG prospective
reimbursement system in New Jersey has led to earlier hospital
discharges, thereby increasing the need for more appropriate home care
services.

New Jersey's Medicaid program‘ should be commended for its
home health personal care services and, now, for the community care
program for the elderly and the disabled. What is so very necessary,
however, 1is a medically needy category for those marginal-income
families who, unquestionably, need Medicaid assistance. It is our
understanding that more than 30 states have some form of medically
needy category. New York's program, which includes the possibility of

extensive home care services, has been in place for many years. Our
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New York offices frequently help patients during the waiting period
that follows the filing of the Medicaid application. This help 1s
based on the fact that the patients and their families have spent-down
to the Medicaid eligibility level and we can feel comfortable about
discontinuing financial assistance, because Medicaid in New York will
help with an adequate home care plan.

We are aware that several versions of a medically needy
program are under consideration by you and the New Jersey Division of
Medical Assistance. We are also aware that there is justifiable
concern about costs. We do not consider ourselves qualified to comment
on costs, other than to remind the Committee that society must assume
responsibility for its sick poor, and that this responsibility cannot
be met without the expenditure of money.

We would also like to highlight the strong possibility that a
medically needy category could be expected to prevent further personal
and family breakdown, problems that could eventually cost society even
more. While we cannot address the fiscal ramifications of a medically
needy category, we trust that we have adequately described the immense
need that has been found in the community. A volunteer agency, such as
ours, can only deal with some of this need. Rightfully, we should
assist those with middle incomes who are trying desperately to make
ends meet, but who are saddled with many expenses that were created by
their illness. The public sector must extend Medicaid to those who are
close to the Medicaid level and are contending with severe illness.
This represents a just public-voluntary partnership in the best
interest of those who need help because of illness.

We are pleased that we can provide financial assistance to
needy cancer patients, but the reality is that we are currently
disbursing $1,000 a week over our budget. Moreover, we are now
confronted by the possibility of having to cut back on our assistance.
We urge you to amend A-608 to mandate, as does S-1718, a medically
needy cateqgory, and to choose Option Four. At the very least we hope
you would choose Option Two, which is described by the Division of
Medicaid Assistance and Health Services as all medical services for all
categories: children, pre- and post-natal care, the elderly, and the
disabled.
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Thank you for this opportunity to meet with you. We would be
pleased to answer any questions you may have.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you, Ms. Feldman. I would like to
announce that this hearing will extend through lunch, in order to
expedite matters. We don't intend to break for lunch. If your name is
on the witness list and you are hungry and want to grab a sandwich,
please let us know and we will make sure that you are called when you
return. The cafeteria is right down the hall. Ms. Feldman, do you
have any data on the people you serve in New Jersey, particularly on
their incomes and asset levels?

MS. FELDMAN: We don't consider assets. That is a luxury we
enjoy. We don't have the restrictions placed upon us that are put upon
public agencies. We really do not think in terms of assets --
other than liquid assets. In each family's situation we consider their
total responsibilities. We did a study of our disbursements. Our data
was categorized by "incomes under $600 a month," "incomes between
$600-$1200 a month," and "incomes of $1200 and over a month." We
studied those disbursements carefully for a year. If you like, we
would be more than happy to share this data with you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: We would be more than happy to have
it. Would you please send it to the Chair?

MS. FELDMAN: Indeed.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you. You mentioned that Medicare
is limited on home health care services. I thought all of the
restrictions on home health care were lifted from Medicare?

MS. FELDMAN: No. Another luxury we enjoy is that we can pay
for any level of care that is needed by the patients and their families
in order to be sustained. Medicare pays only for what is defined as
skilled care and, even though close to death, many of these patients
may not fit that definition.

MS5. NASH: Sir, what was lifted under Medicare's home health
care was the number of allowable visits, which is indefinite now. The
restrictions, however, are so severe that the long-range effect has
been to limit the home health benefit. This is something the National

Association of Home Care is fighting, because some of the
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interpretations by fiscal intermediaries have become more and more
rigid. It has, in effect, compacted what people get. Mr. Marosy will
be able to address that.

You must qualify for a skilled service in order to be
eligible for part-time, intermittent home health care from home health
aid. And two hours a day for three days a week can be a drop in the
bucket for the very sick people we have described.

ASSEMBLYMAN  WATSON: Assemblyman Frelinghuysen or ODr.
Villane, do you have any questions? (negative responses) Hearing no
other questions then, we would like to thank you for your testimony
today. I would also like for you to share your data and other
information with us. Thank you.

MS. FELDMAN: We would be glad to do so. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Testifying now for the New Jersey
Federation of Senior Citizens is Edith Edelson.

EDITH EDELSON: There are several copies of my testimony available if
someone wants to distribute them.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you. Would you mind taking a
seat and pushing the button down on your microphone? And you're on.

MS. EDELSON: Thank you very much for the chance to be here,
and for your real concern for this group, the medically needy.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: (interrupting) Did you push your button
down? (indicates microphone)

MS. EDELSON: I did, but nothing happened.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Is the red light on?

ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: John, check yours. I think yours is
off.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: (presses button on his microphone) I'm
sorry. I got you fouled up over here.

MS. EDELSON: Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to
talk to vyou. We certainly appreciate your keen interest in the
medically needy in the general way and in the specifics of it. It
shows a real concern. The New Jersey Federation of Senior Citizens has
been working for the enactment of a medically needy program for about
10 years, ever since Assemblyman Herman introduced such a bill, at our

request.
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We have now reached the point where practically everyone
recognizes that such a program is needed. We have the cosponsorship of
42 Senators and 21 Assemblypersons. Assembly Bill 608 has been
endorsed by dozens of organizations that represent various
constituencies. The Department of Health and Commissioner Albanese
have lent their support to such a program. Governor Kean, in the past,
has made statements pointing to the need for extending medical
assistance to the medically needy.

As I sit here, I sense a change in the climate, with regard
to the medically needy, and it disturbs me. Everyone says they are for
it. They agree it is vitally needed. But, they also say that we must
worry about what may happen in 1990, 2000, or whatnot -- that we must
worry about what would happen under these contingencies or those
contingencies.

If people really feel that health is the primary concern,
then everything else must fall in 1line wunder that category or
parameter. I don't see that happening among some of the people in
the Legislature, among some of the people who will be testifying, or
among some of those people who have already testified.

Assembly Bill 608 is so general in its statements. It merely
says there should be a medically needy program. Now, all of the
details could be worked out subsequently. If we agree that it is
really needed -- and I think we do -- then let us at least get the
legislation in, so the wheels can begin turning.

I would like to suggest an amendment to A-608. It has been
agreed to. by Assemblyman Deverin, and it merely states that the
Cbmmissioner is authorized, if the money is available, to implement a
medically needy program.

I have jumped ahead of myself and skipped some sentences.
(peruses printed testimony)

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: It is fine that you did. In fact, some
of the testimony is getting to be quite lengthy. If you would continue
to summarize, it would be as effective as reading the entire
testimony. So just continue to summarize.

MS. EDELSON: All right. I will try not to repeat what I

said the last time I testified before you.
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In the past, setting aside money from the General Fund for
the medically needy was difficult because budgets were very tight.
Now, the General Fund is going to help the State. In fact, 1
understand that even during the recent recession the economy in New
Jersey was doing well, and in the past year the General Fund has
accumulated a substantial surplus.

Moreover, and we learned this just recently, New Jersey will
be receiving an additional $12 million from the Federal government in
the form of Medicaid reimbursement. And now, unlike in the past, the
Casino Revenue Fund is available for new and expanded programs. Some
legislators have questioned the depletion of this fuhd, yet they keep
introducing bills which draw upon it. There is the contradiction that
has run through this all along.

It is true that priorities have to be established for its
use, but we cannot wait forever for a Casino Revenue Fund Commission to
be established. It is ironic that legislation to establish such a
Commission was put into use because we all felt the need for
priorities. We were happy that such a bill was enacted by the
Legislature. Now we find it to be a stumbling block, because the
Commission has not been appointed and priorities have not been
established.

I represent the Federation on the Task Force that Ms. Zahora
spoke of. We brought up the question of the medically needy, and there
was no vote against it. There was only a vote to table it. They did
not want to vote against it. The position taken by our two

organizations is this: We want priorities before we implement bills.
They are not against a medically needy program or against the use of

the Casino Revenue Fund, as such. They are being stopped because of
the situation with the Commission. As I said, I don't think we should
wait forever for the Commission. ~ °

We congratulate Assemblyman Kavanaugh for calling public
hearings to resolve the question of priorities. At last someone 1is
saying, "Let's do something about it." The top priority is health;
without a medically needy program, the damage to the health of many

people would be irreparable. You will hear from some of the testimony
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today how some lives have been ruined because there is no medically
needy program.

Among the groups that desperately need such a program are
widows between the ages of 60-64. While they may be eligible for
Social Security benefits, they cannot get Medicare before the age of
65; thus, they have no insurance to cover their medical needs. From a
humane point of view, we are obligated to provide health care for the
people who cannot afford it. From a financial point of view, the
program 1is cost-effective. The hospitals need a medically needy
program to reduce the bad debts. The State needs it because it would
save them money in the long run. Being a preventive program, it would
reduce the use of emergency rooms and the need for hospitalization.

Your Committee has been holding on to the bill for a long
time, patiently waiting for research and so forth. We urge you to
amend A-608 to make it mandatory for the Commissioner to carry out a
medically needy program, and then report the bill out for a vote.

Attached to this statement is our "Fact Sheet Explaining the
Medically Needy Program," and a list of co-sponsors of these bills.
We ask that an adVisory committee of seniors and others in the public
sector be appointed, to allow them to participate in the planning of a
medically needy program. Thank you very much.

ASSEMBLYMAN  WATSON: Thank you. I have a couple of
questions, and then my fellow Committee members, Assemblyman Villane
and Assemblyman Frelinghuysen, may have questions for you.

The thrust of this bill is to retain legislative control
authorizing a medically needy program. Would you give carte blanche to
the Commissioner in this program?

MS. EDELSON: I think there is a need for flexibility -- with
reference to the services -- depending on the cost, what money is
available, and so on. From that perspective, I think control of this
legislation by the Department of Human Services might be extremely
helpful. We are accustomed to the Department of Human Services dealing

with human needs; we have no objection to that.
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Allow me to respond in defense of the
legislative process. Through experience we find that the more finite
and definitive we make a bill, the more the bill reflects the will of
the people and the legislator who represents them. Consequently, input -
from public hearings such as this and data from surveys that are
requested from the Department go into the refinement of a bill to make
it more responsive to the needs of the people we intend to serve.

Oftentimes, we regret the passage of a bill that was intended
to do one thing but which, in reality, does something else because we
left the requlations up to the departments which had the perogatives.
Oftentimes, the bill is never implemented in the form that we
intended. Bear with us. As far as I am concerned, there is not a more
needy program in the legislative process of some 4,000 bills than this
one. Outside of the Prescription Drug Act that was funded by the
Casino Revenue Fund, I don't think there is another bill that addresses
the real concerns of people in dire need of the State's financial
help. ‘

Many of us fully support the bill, but we believe it has a
lot of loose ends, where the financial burden is concerned: where it
will come from, who it will serve, who will be qualified, who will
decide qualification. So you can be sure that we are going to work on
those things. We are also going to demand of the departments whatever
input they can deliver to us, so that we can put a bill into effect
that really meets the needs of the people we are attempting to help.
We appreciate your taking a day off to come here today. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON:  Thank you, Dr. Villane. Ms. Edelson,
were you aware that the Commission on Uses of the Casino Fund has been
fully appointed and is ready to have meetings?

MS.  EDELSON: I called Assemblyman Karcher's office
yesterday and spoke to a staff aide who said there is still one member
to be appointed.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Still one member? Are you sure of
that?

MS. EDELSON: One member of the public.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: It is my understanding that they are

fully complemented now.
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MS. EDELSON: I hope so.

ASSEMBLYMAN  WATSON: Knowing that we have the casino
projection surplus this year, I want your reaction to a press release
that we received this morning from the Director of the State Division
on Aging, Ms. Zahora. It says, "Ann Zahora, Director of the State
Division on Aging told an Assembly Committee today she is opposed to
the medically needy bill on the grounds New Jersey cannot afford such a
program.” What is your reaction to that?

MS. EDELSON: I am horrified, and I am heartbroken that there
is such a gap between the thinking of the Division on Aging, which
represents seniors, and that of the seniors out in the field. At our
meeting, nothing was said by Ms. Zahora along that line at all. It
seems to me that I sense a change, and I don't know the basis for that
change.

ASSEMBLYMAN ~ WATSON: Thank you. I have no further
questions. Oh, just one other thing. (reads from printed
testimony) A woman aged 60-64 may not be eligible for medically needy
unless she has dependent children or is disabled. Is that correct?

MS. EDELSON: She may be up to age 65; she.has to be a widow;
she has to be disabled. A widow has to be disabled to get Social
Security, but she will not get Medicare until she is 65 years old,
unless she 1is disabled. Some of them are not considered disabled
by Social Security but they still have many medical needs.

ASSEMBLYMAN  WATSON: If she receives Social Security
disability, would she not be--

MS. EDELSON: (interrupting) VYes. The person who receives
disability benefits is all right. There are many who have strong
medical needs, however, who are not considered disabled by the Social
Security Administration.

ASSEMBLYMAN  WATSON: Would they not be covered by
disability?

MS. EDELSON: They would be covered by medically needy.

MR. HERSHBERG: Your disability has to meet Social Security
standards, and unless you meet those standards you would not be

considered disabled. Therefore you would not be considered eligible.
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MS. EDELSON: That is interesting. Thank you. I will have
to think about that.

MR. HERSHBERG: That is, unless Medicaid can correct me.

FROM AUDIENCE: You are correct.

MS. EDELSON: Thank you for the clarification.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: We have a question from Assemblyman
Frelinghuysen.

ASSEMBLYMAN FRELINGHUYSEN: It is, perhaps, more a statement
than a question.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I'm sorry, a statement.

ASSEMBLYMAN FRELINGHUYSEN: I commend you for your statement,
Ms. Edelson. I was not aware that you have been working on this for 10
years. I have not been down here that long. I think the most
important message contained in your testimony is that this 1is a
preventive program. The Legislature 1is certainly interested in
containing health care costs. This type of legislation may accomplish
exactly that, or at least part of that.

What worries and surprises me somewhat is that individuals --
legislators included -- continue to feel that the Casino Revenue Fund
is inexhaustible. As you know, and as I have perhaps heard you say on
other occasions, it is not inexhaustible. I would want further
assurance that we are not creating, even with excellent, worthwhile
intentions, more dependency. If we set up a program of this nature,
and I think we probably will, we want to make sure that those who are
most in need are served. Once we create this program, there is no way
-- even if the Casino Revenue Fund is depleted by other programs --
that we are going to discontinue this program. We must be extremely
careful in determining which of the options to embrace initially.

There are those who feel we should go the whole route. And I
think you can testify more accurately than I that it was just this type
of embracement that got us into trouble with the Pharmaceutical
Assistance Program -- and I assume you consider that a priority. We
certainly do not want to disturb the peace of mind people have received
from the existence of that program's stability by introducing a costly

program. At this point, we are not sure exactly how much money, in the
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form of annual tax dollars, would have to be contributed toward it.
Thank you very much.

MS. EDELSON: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON:  Thank you again, Ms. Edelson. Thank
you, Assemblyman. We will now hear from Kim D. Osterhoudt, the
Assistant Director of Financial Planning for the University of Medicine
and Dentistry of New Jersey.

KIM D. OSTERHOUDT: Thank you very much. I appreciate the opportunity
to share my comments with you.

The University pledges support for Assembly Bill 608. Given
the level of uncompensated care at University Hospital, A-608 could
provide an excellent opportunity to alleviate a portion of its indigent
care by expanding the criteria for Medicaid eligibility. University
Hospital addresses the needs of the single-largest indigent population
of any institution in New Jersey. The median per-capita income for the
City of Newark is less than two-thirds of that of the State.

Furthermore, the percentage of families who live below the
poverty line in Newark 1is 12% higher than elsewhere in the State.
Although other hospitals in Newark serve the poor, the real importance
of University Hospital to the population of the city is reflected in
its uncompensated care statistics. Over 75% of the total number of
annual indigent patient days in the City of Newark are provided by
University Hospital.

The University endorses A-608. Any one of its four options
would help reduce the level of uncompensated care at University

Hospital. Option Four, however, would provide the greatest amount of

relief to the hospital, as it would cover in-patient, as well as
ambulatory, care.

Unéompensated care represents approximately one-third of all
in-patient services and 25% of ambulatory services provided by
University Hospital. Furthermore, if the New Jersey DRG waiver is not
renewed, the impact of A-608 will be even more significant because

reimbursement for uncompensated care will cease to exist, as will

access to health care for indigent patients.
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This bill could have a favorable impact on our hospital by
increasing the volume of health care consumers who are eligible for
Medicaid. In any case, however, it is important for agencies and
programs that currently provide services to indigent patients to
maintain their present efforts. The impact of A-608 could be
neutralized if existing programs and services were withdrawn, as was
the case with county and other indigent care support in New Jersey,
prior to the onset of Chapter 83.

University Hospital has a vast potential for comprehensibly
meeting the needs of the community in the greater Newark area. If this
institution is to meet its goals and its mission to provide quality
care to an indigent population, the continued reimbursement of funding
for such care is essential. Hence, the UMDNJ pledges its active
support of A-608 to turn necessary initiatives into viable reality.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON:  Thank you. I have several questions.
Would the UMDNJ supply the Committee with copies of its share forms for
1983-84? From what I gathered when we last heard from the Department
of Health, this information had not been given to them by the
hospital.

MS. OSTERHOUDT: I don't know if the information from 1984 is
complete yet, but I am sure 1983's is.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Would you make that available, through
the Chair, to the Committee?

MS. OSTERHOUDT: Yes. I can ask that of the hospital, if you
like. I haven't seen a copy of the questionnaire that is available,

but I am sure that our uncompensated care--
ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: (interrupting) We will make a copy

available to you.

MS. OSTERHOUDT: Fine. I would be happy to provide you with
it, if I can. Xeroxing the share forms is a big job. Could you tell
me what you are specifically interested in?

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: We need the whole thing. You probably
have not seen the survey. Evidently you have not received it.

MS. OSTERHOUDT: I have not seen it. I am in Finance and

Central Administration for the University. One of my responsibilities
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is to protect the University's interest. The financial management of
the hospital is handled by HCA. We have open doors of communication,
however, so I don't think there will be any problem getting it. Not
being in the hospital, per se, I just have not seen it.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Can Medicaid share this form with you?

MS. OSTERHOUDT: Sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Will they be able to do that? (witness
nods affirmatively) That's fine. Would you, in concert with Medicaid,
provide that information to us through the Chair? If Medicaid could
provide you with a survey, the hospital could then determine its own
survey.

MS. OSTERHOUDT: Now I'm lost. Are you saying that, if
Medicaid gives me the questionnaire, we should complete it and get it
back to you?

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: You can, in turn, finalize it the way we
want it, through the hospital.

MR. HERSHBERG: Would the hospital be willing to undertake
the completioh of that survey? We are having difficulty completing it
on its own?

MS. OSTERHOUDT: Are you asking if they would conduct it

among all of their patients?
ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Yes.

MS. OSTERHOUDT: I can ask them. I don't see any reason why
they would not. I don't know exactly what goes into the admissions
procedure as it is, but I can certainly suggest that.

MR. HERSHBERG: Okay. Medicaid will supply you with copies
of the questionnaire survey form.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Do you have any reaction or comment
to the Committee's concern about the data supplied by hospitals on
indigent care?

MS. OSTERHOUDT: I am a little concerned. Earlier today, I
heard your comment that some of the hospitals in the City of Newark
seemed to have very low indigent statistics. I know we handle 75% of
it, and that doesn't leave much for the other hospitals. Our

statistics should, however, be readily available to you.
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We provide the bulk of it, and I think this bill would help,
with or without the waiver. Certainly, if we lose the waiver, it would
be more helpful. As it is now, we would be just as happy to do more.
I think it should be clear that, even though we provide the highest
level of indigent care at University Hospital, we are not compensated
for it through the DRG system, as are other hospitals.

ASSEMBLYMAN WEIDEL: They aren't compensated?

MR. HERSHBERG: They are compensated, but they only get 7%.

MS. OSTERHOUDT: Yes, we get 7%. Our actual uncompensated
care figure today is about 30-34%.

MR. HERSHBERG: But 7% is more than most hospitals get.

MS. OSTERHOUDT: There are hospitals that receive more
compensation, yet provide less care, than us. St. Joseph's in
Patterson gets something like 13.65%, and we certainly provide more
than they do. There are several hospitals that get more than 7%.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: That is very interesting.

MS. OSTERHOUDT: We think so too. (laughter)

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Dr. Villane? Assemblyman Weidel? (no
questions) Hearing no more questions, we thank you for your attendance
here this afternoon. '

Our next witness is Sue Dondiego from the New Jersey Foster
Parents Association.

SUE DONDIEGO: Thank you, Assemblyman Watson, for providing us with the
opportunity to address the issues that have been discussed today. The
New Jersey Foster Parents Association serves as an advocate voice for

foster children and families across our State. There are presently
3,000 foster families in New Jersey who care for 6,800 foster

children. Our organization wishes to speak initially of our strong
support of Assembly Bill 608, the medically needy legislation sponsored
by Assemblyman Thomas Deverin.

While our prime concern is for foster children and families,
we are well aware that the lack of adequate health care for a large
portion of New Jersey's population is one of the most pressing problems
facing our State today. Because of the restrictions placed on Medicaid

eligibility, many of those persons who live in poverty have no access
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to health care. We are particularly interested in this bill's passage
since estimates indicate Medicaid services would be expanded to cover
not only 90,000 elderly, 12,000 disabled, and 50,000 adults but also
100,000 children.

A medically needy program will cost the State money, but
inappropriate hospital emergency-room treatment and unpaid hospital
bills are already an expenditure for which the State pays.

Foster parents are continually troubled by the total lack of
medical services that birth parents have been able to provide for their
children. As a foster parent, I have had children placed in my home
who needed immediate medical or dental attention. If taken care of
when first needed, their problems would not have become emergencies, or
would not have required more than one visit to a doctor or dentist.

We appreciate the complexity surrounding the administration
and implementation of this bill, but the New Jersey Foster Parents
Association urges its speedy passage, to ensure that the medically
needy of our State receive adequate health care.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you. Assemblymen, do you have any
questions? (negative response) Thank you for your testimony.

MS. DONDIEGO: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: We would now like to hear from John Paul

Marosy of the Home Health Agency Assembly of New Jersey.
JOHN PAUL MAROSY: 1 am John Paul Marosy. This is my first opportunity
to speak before a Committee of the New Jersey lLegislature. I am the
Executive Director of the Home Health Agency Assembly of New Jersey. 1
have run a home care program for the elderly in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts for the past 10 years. I recently returned to New
Jersey, my native State.

I would like to thank the Committee for the opportunity to
speak in favor of A-608. The Home Health Agency Assembly of New Jersey
has been on record in support of the Medically Needy Program for New
Jersey since 1978. We know there are citizens of all ages in this
State who desperately need health care and who are prevented from
receiving such care because they often fall through the cracks. They

have neither sufficient incomes to purchase health care privately, nor

55



are they eligible under the existing Medicaid system. We believe that
such deprivation is unacceptable in a humane society.

We have reviewed the estimated cost-and-use data on this
bill, which was prepared by the Medicaid office of the Department of
Human Services, and we believe it to be reasonable. We realize that,
at this time, no set package of services is being recommended, and no
defined population groups have been determined.

While Option One is a minimal program package, and Option
Four is a maximum program package, Options Two and Three are mere
examples of possible program plans.

We want to stress the importance of including home health
care in any medically needy program -- whichever one the State chooses
to adopt. We are particularly sensitive to the home health care needs
of children and chronically ill, elderly people. Home care has great
potential for cost savings, especially in the care of the elderly.

We are all aware that New Jersey's population is aging, and
that there will be greater numbers of elderly people as we progress
into the next decade. We know that many of these elderly people will
develop chronic illnesses. We need a health care plan in this State
that will assure the appropriate use of health care money. Under the
present system, substantially all health care money goes for
institutional care, but there is a great need for chronic care in
private homes, an area that goes largely unfunded.

Today, home health care represents less than 2% of the annual
Medicaid budget. While the community care program for the elderly and

the disabled is reaching a limited number of people who are immediately
at risk of nursing-home placement, many people do not qualify under the

restrictive terms of this program.

In summary, we support a medically needy bill because it
would expand health care to a vulnerable population. We believe that
home health care must be a central component of any medically needy
package. Promoting the good health of needy children and frail,
elderly citizens has to be a wise investment for the future of the
family in New Jersey.

I will be glad to answer any questions you might have.
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ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you, Mr. Marosy. Does the Agency
have data on the people it serves?

MR. MAROSY: Yes, it does.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON:  Would you make it available to this
Committee through the Chair, please?

MR. MAROSY: Certainly. We can provide the Committee with a
review of the current status of the home health industry. There are
about 133,000 people in New Jersey who are served by home health care.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Would you also have their incomes?

MR. MAROSY: We have a breakdown of the programs which pay
for the care provided. About 75% of all care is covered by Medicare.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: 1 appreciate that. (to Committee
members) Any questions? (negative response) Hearing none, thank you,
Mr. Marosy, for appearing.

MR. MAROSY: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN ~ WATSON: Are Judy Miller and Mary Ann

Christopher, from the Monmouth County Office of Social Services, here
today? (witness comes forward) Would you please state your name for
the record?
JUDITH L. MILLER, R.N.: I am Judy Miller. I want to note a change for
the record. I want it noted that I am from MCOSS Nursing Services.
Those initials are not an acronym. We are a health care agency that
provides home health care, ambulatory services, and
health-maintenance-outreach services in Monmouth County.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Could I just interrupt you? 1 see that
you have lengthy testimony, and--

MS. MILLER: I am not going to read it all. In fact, I will
probably cover the areas that are not included in my written
testimony. My colleague, Mary Ann Christopher, was unable to be here
today. I want to share this with you, to help you better understand
our perspective. Ms. Christopher is a geriatric nurse practitioner who
works with the ancillary services in our agency. As a maternal-child
health clinical nurse specialist, I am responsible for our ambulatory
services. This cateqgory includes the medically needy, children, and

pregnant women. I also happen to be the Chairperson of the Maternal-
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Child Health Division of the New Jersey State Nurses Association, so
that coincides with what we will discuss today.

From the start, we have really looked at Option Two. We do
not want to force excessive money into the system. We are concerned,
as are the parents of eligible children, because that category is left
out of Option II. Our concern, basically, is for the recipients. We
are not trying to promote any particular type of health service.
Likewise, we are not trying to promote any one discipline. I just want
to make that comment.

In summary, we are concerned, as the previous speaker
mentioned, that home health services should be a bit more defined. Our
experience has been that, in actual practice, a lot of people do not
fit into that category. Subsequently, they are not able to receive
services in time. You have to be chronically ill for a period of time
before you really fit into some of the other catchment areas. If, for
example, service is not provided soon to a stroke victim, we end up
creating more expense. That is one of our perspectives. We are able
to provide viable, adequate home care at a reasonable cost, as compared
to hospital costs.

We are particularly concerned about children with chronic
illnesses. Sometimes, they fit into other categories, but there is a
whole group that falls through the cracks. Without their home care
needs attended to, some of these children and their families will end
up in more difficult, and therefore more expensive, situations. If we
are able to work within the home setting, where we can support,some of
setting, where we can support some of the other services that are
needed, the entire family copes better. If we can help the patient
learn to be compliant, and if the family is more able to cope, there is
a lesser cost to society.

We have shared some examples with you. Many high-risk
pregnant women and children, we know, are included in Option One, but,
again, home care is not considered as an option for these people very
often. Yet, along with my staff, from the home, 1 can help a high-risk
pregnant woman with hypertensive disease of pregnancy and, monitoring

that pregnancy in conjunction with a physician, keep her out of a
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hospital. We can work toward a healthier, more viable child. So, 1
have a concern about that.

We feel, as I mentioned, that many home care programs which
have been implemented throughout the country actually limit nursing.
We have a concern that the professional supervision of some of these
programs by professional nurses is an oversight.

We have talked with people from the Association, children of
New Jersey,‘the Senior Citizens Federation and some coalitions. Our
reason for suggesting an advisory committee is more an ongoing kind of
situation. We are concerned, for example, that if specific services
are chosen arbitrarily -- arbitrarily with a lot of input; I want to
qualify the use of that term -- many professionals throughout the State
are working on a daily basis with all of these situations. We would
suggest that a multi-disciplinary advisory committee work along in an
ongoing fashion in the actual implementation of this legislation.

Among the people to be included, I would highly recommend
nurses who have cared for, and who have been case managers for, these
types of people. I would particularly recommend people who work in
community health, maternal and child health, gerontology, and
- rehabilitation. The New Jersey State Nurses Association is a good
resource for the selection of this kind of people.

Let me just look at my notes to see if I have anything else
to share with you. (peruses notes) 1 think I covered everything. Do
you Have any QUestions?

ASSEMBLYMAN ~ WATSON: Does that complete byour summarized
statement?

MS. MILLER: Yes, it does.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Does MCOSS Nursing Services have data on
the number of clients served, and the income of each client?

MS. MILLER: We have quite a bit of data. I will see if I
can get some of it to you. That question, though, reminds me of
something I noted on my paper while listening to other testimony.

In home care, and in the kind of ambulatory services we
provide in our various clinics, in order to establish a sliding-scale

fee for our clients, we ask each and every client what their income
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level is. That is not a problem. I find it interesting that hospitals
have that comment.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Would you find your clients offended by
asking that?

MS. MILLER: They are not offended. We approach it from the
standpoint that we are trying to provide a service for them and, in
order to find the appropriate mechanism to enable us to continue to
provide such a service, we must do this together. People have never
found it offensive.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Is Medicaid's definition of home health
care broad enough for your agency's purpose?

MS. MILLER: No. There are many times when people are not
accorded home care by that definition. As you heard before, there has
to be skilled nursing in certain situations. For example, if I want to
help a family learn to parent their child so that the disablity does
not worsen, I must be very careful in the terminology I use, in order
to get reimbursement.

We work closely with Medicaid, and many times they are very
helpful when we seek reimbursement, but they are still--

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Are you employing the social standard of
Medicaid?

MS. MILLER: No, we are dealing with health care: nursing,
therapy, and so forth. Again, we are a health care organization; we
are not a welfare board or a social service organization, despite our
initials. And again, earlier I heard someone mention the personal
care assistance program. I don't work with it, so I really cannot
answer questions pertaining to it. Recently, however, many families
have transferred to that program. It is supposed to be a cost-cutting
mechanism, but it also removes some of the professional supervision,
and that can create a very sticky situation in some families.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I noticed in your remarks that you were
talking about an advisory board. Are you aware that, by law, there is
a Medicaid Advisory Board already?

MS. MILLER: Yes. We were thinking, more specifically, of
this kind of legislation.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you. Yes, Dr. Villane?
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ASSEMBLYMAN VILLANE: Mr. Chairman, if I may. Being from
Monmouth County, I am acutely aware of the extremely successful job
MCOSS is doing for there. There are tireless paid workers and many,
many volunteers who provide a lot of quality health care in the home.
This reduces the burden on government. I agree with your
fecommendation, Ms. Miller, and with the Chairman's permission, I think
it is important for this Committee to have the opinions and experiences
of nurses who have provided home care. It would be good information
for us to look over, to see where we can help those people by treating
them in the home atmosphere -- rather than subjecting them to hospital
care. I want to thank you personally, as a resident of Monmouth County
and as a State legislator, for the fine work you are doing.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you, doctor. Are there any other
questions for Ms. Miller? (negative response from Committee members)
Then I would, once again, like to thank you for your appearance here
today. We would like to get that information from you within a few
days or in the near future, at your convenience. Would you address it
to the Chair? (affirmative response from witness) Thanks a lot.

| MS. MILLER: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Our next speaker will be Mr. Ciro
Scalera from the Association for Children of New Jersey.

CIRO SCALERA: Thank you, Assemblyman Watson. I will summarize my
comments.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you.

MR. SCALERA: I am the Director of the Association for
Children, but I feel compelled, sitting here this morning, to sidetrack
somewhat from my prepared statement. I would 1like to make some
comments on some concerns I have about this whole process.

Before I do that, though, I want to at least summarize what
is 1in my testimony. About two months ago, we conducted a children's
health forum and we ihvited Dr. Robert Johnson from the University of
Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey to come to give us a speech
specifically on the medically needy. What I have presented in my
testimony is the full text of his speech. We have also summarized in

our testimony his comparison of two chronically ill children, both aged
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13, one from South Orange, one from Newark. The bottom line in terms
of the preventive nature of what a medically needy program can do is
spelled out very clearly. The one youngster -- who is now in college
-- had total care costs of $3,700, for one hospital visit. The other
youngster had total care costs of $65,850 over 40 hospital visits. The
primary reason for the difference was that the one family could not
afford to pay for routine clinic visits or prescriptions. If you read
the doctor's testimony from our health forum, you will see that, number
one, this is not an atypical situation, and number two, the
consequences of not having the ability to provide for what we all may
consider to be very routine medical practices can have some very
bottom-line dollar results.

That is the summary of our testimony. I would request that
the Committee take a look at that, and I know that they will.

I would like to express a couple of concerns about some
things that bhave taken place this morning. First, I am really
concerned that we have not seen the production of information that this
Committee requested and generously gave time frames on in terms of
allowing for the production of this. We are now at a point where we
are still hearing very tentative kinds of statements, where we should
be talking some of the specifics that we all knew three or four months
ago that we would need to talk about.

Secondly, I am concerned specifically that the Department of
Health, which is charged with taking a pro-active position in our State
in defining the health needs of our children and our senioré, has not

come out and said which of the specifics it deems -- since it is the
primary health care ageny in the State -- should be part of the

specifics. Then, in terms of a specific Department, the Department of
Community Affairs' Division on Aging-- Again, [ was very dismayed to
hear their comments and, also, not to have heard any comments in terms
of what the health care needs of seniors are from the representative of
the Division on Aging. I was somewhat dismayed -- sitting back as a
citizen, as well as the Director of the Association for Children -- to

see this take place.
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Another concern involves the funding of this whole
mechanism. As a representative of the Association for Children, I find
myself 1in somewhat of an untenable position. If we say that casino
funds are not to be touched, or used, that then means that the full
cost would have to come from general State revenues. That would mean
that the program, depending on the options selected, would be that much
more costly, yet seniors would be given the services. I do not want to
be in the position of having to say that because the seniors, whom we
have been working very closely with from day one of this-- I do not
want to say, "Well, pick an option that provides for pregnant women and
children, say Option One, and forget about the seniors until we can get
a consensus on what the senior health needs are.”"” 1 will not make that
statement, and I think it is untenable for us to try to pick and choose
in that way.
We support this program going forward; we support it working
together with the seniors. I think it is a health care issue for
seniors. I think that Edith testified, and you will hear it from other
representatives, that something can be done to address this in a
comprehensive way, not excluding, or taking an option, that is going to
be put aside.
| Finally, on. the question of the options, in an ideal world,
we would prefer Option Four. As several of the witnesses said, if the
DRG waiver is in jeopardy, that would be a viable option. It is a
question-- We have all seen the commercial about you can pay now or
you can pay later. That is certainly true, because the waiver would
come up again in 1987. What will be the cost between now and 1987,
however, if we do not begin to address that? So, Option Four, if we do
lose the waiver, is certainly our preference. Short of that, we are
realistic. Our position, as an agency, has been to support the
development of this program now, even if it means picking an option
that may not provide the fullest extent of range. I would say at this
point that Option Three, which does include the parents, is the one we
would prefer. However, at this point, we would support Option Two or

Option Three.
That is the end of my formal comments. I would be happy to

answer any questions the Committee members may have.
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ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you for providing us with vyour
testimony this afternoon. I just want you to know that this Committee
is grateful that you are as concerned as we are. We are going to
continue to try to get the kind of information we requested in the
beginning as soon as possible. We are very concerned about this, and
we are going to make sure that our movement will be adhered to between
now and the end of the month.

MR. SCALERA: 1 appreciate that.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Are there any questions from the members
of the Committee? Assemblyman Frelinghuysen?

ASSEMBLYMAN FRELINGHUYSEN: I have a comment. I just want to
commend you for the material you sent us.

MR. SCALERA: Thank you, Assemblyman Frelinghuysen. We sent
everyone a copy of our health forum report.

ASSEMBLYMAN FRELINGHUYSEN: It was extremely informative. It
would be nice if we had the material that is applicable to all age
groups, as well as what you provided in terms of providing for young
people. Thank you.

MR. SCALERA: Thank you, Assemblyman.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Mr. Scalera, do you have any comments on
the reliability of the hospital data on indigent care?

MR. SCALERA: Not really. I don't have any data on that.
I would share the comments of the nurse who preceded me that I can't
imagine that to conduct that kind of a survey-- We conduct surveys all
the time at the Association. We have not found that when you are
polling people about potential programs or benefits they are going to
get that they are unwilling or reluctant to share their income levels
with you. So, I share her view that that should not pose a problem to
doing that. Steps should be taken to ensure confidentiality. I mean,
we do it. I would assume that any association doing research of that
nature would take those steps.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON:  Once again, I would like to thank you
for your appearance here this afternoon.

MR. SCALERA: Thank you, Assemblyman Watson.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Our next speaker will be Mr. Grey

Dimenna from the Department of Higher Education.
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GREY DIMENNA: Thank vyou. My name is Grey Dimenna; I am from the
Department of Higher Education. In the interest of not being
repetitive, the Department is appearing here today in support of this
bill, especially with regard to the effect it would have on University
Hospital which, as you know, is part of the University of Medicine and
Dentistry of New Jersey.

We support the bill not only for the purpose behind it, that
of providing medical care to those who cannot afford it, but we also
support it on the grounds of the effect it would have on University
Hospital and the decreasing of State support for the unmet indigent
care with the resulting Federal aid that would come about as a result
of this bill.

If you have any questions, I would be glad to answer them.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I do not have any; how about the
Committee members? (negative response) All right, thank you for your
appearance this afternoon.

MR. DIMENNA: Okay, thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Mr. George Hooper from the Essex County

Council on Senior Citizens. Good afternoon, Mr. Hooper. In the
interest of time, I would like you to summarize your position, if
possible.
GEORGE HOOPER: I do not have a printed statement, and I will be
brief. First, as to my identity, I have a couple of hats. 1 am also
Chairman of the Tax Task Force of the New Jersey Federation of Senior
Citizens, the same organization Edith Edelson represented, and 1 am a
member of the Legislative Task Force, which has been mentioned here.

Basically, I would like to make a few remarks with reference
to funding. I am particularly interested in that angle. In April, I
presented a statement to the Joint Appropriations Committee, which
contained a few points that are still applicable. One is that senior
citizens are somewhere between 16% and 17% of the population of this
State, if you consider persons over 60, and maybe between 11% and 12%
if you consider persons over 65. Casino fund expenditures, although
they vary, generally represent something around 2% of the State
budget. Therefore, any concept that we are limited to casino funds for

senior programs is, on the face of it, erroneous.
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Second, it is our position that casino funds were designed
for new or expanded programs for seniors under the constitutional uses
permitted.

Third, as has been stated here several times, there is some
question about the usable funds under casino funding. Although there
is a surplus in this year's budget -- as has been pointed out by
Assemblyman Kavanaugh -- there are bills in process and commitments
that will use it up.

The chief problem with reference to the senior part of the
priorities is in your lap. In other words, for two sessions we have
been asking for a commission to get a consensus on priorities and to
present it. For two sessions, there has not been such an operating
commission. I live in Nutley and, unfortunately, there has been a
death of one of the members appointed by the Speaker of the Senate, so
now we have at least one -- and I understand two -- vacancies on the
commission. I don't know that they have even had their first meeting.
But, until such time as this is in order and functioning, we are going

to have this split personality kind of thing. A good program is a good

program. As Edith has said, there is no disagreement -- except where
there is disagreement about some ranges and parameters -- that we have
a good program here. The funding should be a matter of general

funding, if necessary. If we have a surplus, to get it started, I see
no reason why we cannot start with that. It is going to have to be
considered as a good program.

As far as casino funding is concerned, each of the eight or
nine organizations in this task force has its set of priorities and
tries to get together on them. The Federation has its own priorities,
among them, of course, the medically needy. They are changing; these
things are not static. What I am suggesting is, we need to get that
prioritization commission off the ground as rapidly as possible.
Having done that, some of the difficulties that have been pointed out
here by the Division on Aging about worries on funding might well be
leveled off if we get a consensus.

Thank you.
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ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you for your testimony, Mr.
Hooper. Are there any questions from the members of the Committee?
(negative response) I hear none, so I just want to thank you for
appearing this afternoon, and thank you for being patient.

MR. HOOPER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I think Mr. Tergis from the New Jersey
Council of Senior Citizens is the last on our list. Is Mr. Tergis
here? (no response) I understand that we have Mr. Tergis' testimony,
and we will make it part of the record.

-1 think that wraps up our hearing. Is there anyone else who
would like to testify before we adjourn this afternoon? (no response)
Okay, seeing no one come forward, would any Committee member like to
make a statement? (negative response)

Then, I would just like to thank my Assembly colleagues for
being with me today -- Assemblyman Kavanaugh, Assemblyman Weidel,
Assemblyman Frelinghuysen, and Assemblyman Villane. Assemblyman
Deverin was here this morning. I would also like to thank my staff,
Jay Hershberg and Fred Butler. Thank you everyone for your attendance
here today at this second public hearing.

We look forward to receiving Commissioner Albanese's specific
recommendations. We are concerned about the lack of progress in
completing the hospital survey. We are going to make sure -- Mr.
Scalera, as you are. -- that we do everything we can to obtain that
information. Nonetheless, it is the Committee's intention to begin
preparing amendments tb A-608 which will detail the people to be
served, the income and assets test to be used, services,
administration, etc. We intend to begin preparing this bill for the
Committee's release and for Assembly support.

Once again, thank you all for attending. This hearing is

adjourned.

(HEARING CONCLUDED)
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HISTORICAL OVERVIEW OF THz TITLE XIX MEDICALLY NEEDY PROGR:M

The original Social Security Act, which was enacted in 1935, made

no direct provision for medical assistance. However, it did establish a
system of "categorical" public assistance that allowed the federal
government to share with states the cost of providing maintenance
payments to the needy aged and blind, and to needy families with depen-
dent children. This assistance, which was subsequently extended to the
permanently and totally disabled, could include the cost of some medical
care in monthly assistance payments to recipients.

In 1950, public assistance under the Act was broadened to include
federal sharing in "vendor payments," i.e., direct payments by a state
to doctors, nurses, and health care institutions, rather than to the
welfare recipient himself. Although federal sharing in vendor payments
created an administrative framework for a welfare medical program,
federal funding was so small that only a few states participated.
Subsequent amendments to the Act made more federal funds available so
that, by 1965, all of the states provided medical vendor payments in
their federally aided categorical assistance programs. Many states also
offered an allowance for some items of medical care in welfare payments
to categorical assistance recipients.

Despite these expanded federal and state efforts, the need for
medical assistance became so great that most states could finance only a
few services. To help satisfy this need, Title XIX or "Medicaid" was
enacted in the Social Security Amendments of 1965, providing grants to
states for medical assistance programs beginning January 1, 1966. By
January 1, 1967, more than half of the states had Medicaid programs, and
by 1970, all of the states except Alaska (which later implemented one)
and Arizona (which implemented an alternative to Medicaid in 1982) had
programs. As a result, the federal financial participation in medical
care that had been available through the categorical public assistance
programs was ended because of the availability of federal Medicaid funds
. and the administrative advantages of offering medical care exclusively
through Medicaid.

In general, categorically needy individuals who are given public
assistance under the Social Security Act because they are poor, and are
either aged, or blind, or disabled, or members of families with
dependent children, are covered by Medicaid. Other categorically needy
individuals who could generally qualify for such public assistance if
they applied, or Medically Needy individuals who could qualify for such
public assistance except for their slightly greater income and/or
resources, may be covered at the option of the state. Eligible
individuals are called categorically needy because of their relationship
to categories of public assistance under the Act, or Medically Needy
because they lack sufficient income and/or resources to pay their
medical bills.

New Jersey implemented a Medicaid program, in January 1, 1970 to
cover the categorical groups receiving, 1) 01d Age Assistance; 2)

-1-
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Disability Assistance; 3) Aid to Families with Dependent Children ; and
. 4) Assistance for the Blind.

A state's Medicaid plan must offer the categorically needy the
following: (1) inpatient and outpatient hospital services, (2) rural
health clinic services, (3) other laboratory and X-ray services, (4)
skilled nursing facility services for individuals 21 or older, (5) early
and periodic screening, diagnosis, and treatment for individuals under
21 (EPSDT), (6) family planning services for individuals of
child-bearing age, (7) physicians' services, (8) home health services,
(9) nurse-midwife services, and (10) transportation to receive medical
care, and may offer the Categorically Needy any number of the optional
services covered in the federal Medicaid law. (See Appendix A for a
list of the mandatory and optional Medicaid Services.)

In 1974 a study was performed to calculate the costs of
implementing a Medically Needy program in New Jersey. At that time
there was far less flexibility in the program than there is today.
States which wanted to expand their Medicaid coverage to include the
Medically Needy population had to meet specific federal guidelines. The
following basic services would have to have been offered: (1) inpatient
hospital services, (2) outpatient hospital services, (3) laboratory and
x-ray services, (4) skilled nursing home services, (5) physician
services, (6) early and periodic screening and diagnosis of individuals
under 21 years of age, (7) home health services, (8) transportation, and
(9) family planning services and supplies. The State had the option of
providing dental care and prescribed drugs as well as other Medicaid
services, with the stipulation that the services offered to the
Medically Needy had to be equal for all groups. They could, however, be
different from the services offered to the Categorically Needy. In
addition, Medically Needy benefits had to be extended to all client type
groups covered under the State's categorical program.

The 1974 study estimated 136,600 new eligibles would be covered
under a Medically Needy program (01d Age Assistance, 40,000; Disability
and Assistance for the Blind, 12,000; Assistance for Dependent Children,
84,000). The cost was estimated at $49.1 million for the required basic
services and all the optional services covered by the existing Medicaid
program.

The financial eligibility to receive Medically Needy benefits was
set at 133 1/3% of the categorical AFDC program. That was then, as now,
the maximum level permitted under federal regulations.

Now, ten years later the program is under consideration again.
However, there are, in 1984, some substantial differences in the federal
requirements for a Medically Needy program.

The enactment of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981
(OBRA) brought about several changes in the Title XIX Medically Needy
program. States now have the option to establish different medical care
packages for the different groups that qualify as Medically Needy.

5x



If the State implements a Medically Needy program, federal
regulation requires that pregnant women receive prenatal and delivery
services and that children under the age of 18 receive ambulatory care
services. These two groups are the only mandatory groups that must
receive medical care. Beyond these requirements optional services can
be established for the aged, blind, disabled, and the parents of
eligible children.

Federal funding can be received for these last four groups,
however, each medical package cannot exceed the medical services offered
to the categorically needy groups. A different medical package can be
established for each of the optional groups to meet the needs of those
individual categories.

The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981 was unclear about the
definition of children. This created confusion at both the federal and
state level in terms of who had to be covered. The rules and
regulations, published September 30, 1981 in the Federal Register stated
as follows:

"The State Plan may include under the optional categorically needy
those individuals under age 21 (or at State option, under age 20,
17, or 18) who do not qualify as AFDC dependent children. In
addition, States may limit coverage to reasonable classifications
of these persons."

The regulations provided the following as examples of "reasonable
classifications":

1) Individuals in foster homes or private institutions for whom a
public agency is assuming a full or partial financial respon-
sibility.

2) Individuals in adoptions subsidized in full or paid by a
public agency.

3) Individuals in intermediate care facilities, if intermediate
care facilities were to be provided under the State Plan.

The Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982 (TEFRA)
included a number of technical amendments to clarify the definition of
children contained in the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981
(OBRA). Under OBRA it appeared that the costs of providing medical care
to children were minimal because of the narrow definitions used for
“reasonable classifications" of children. TEFRA expanded the definition
to include all Medically Needy children. However, regulations for TEFRA
have not been published. Therefore, the existing federal regulations on
the Medically Needy program conflict with the statute; however, the
statute takes precedence.
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CLIENTS COVERED UNDER A MEDICALLY NEEDY PROGRAM

If a State elects to establish a Medically Needy program, it must
extend coverage to children and pregnant women. The State may
elect to extend coverage to other groups such as aged, blind, or
disabled clients as well as parents in families with dependent
children.

In addition to providing Medicaid services to the categorically
needy, under Title XIX of the Social Security Act, states may elect
to provide coverage to the Medically Needy. Before the passage of
the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981 (OBRA), this group
consisted, in general, of all persons who, except for their income
and resources, would have been eligible for either AFDC or SSI.

Sections 2171 and 2172 of OBRA revised Title XIX by giving the
States flexibility in determining which groups of individuals would
be included in their Medically Needy program. The intent of these
provisions was to enable each state to target Medicaid services for
the optional groups based on the States consideration of pri-
orities, needs and resources.

With the incorporation of the provisions of OBRA into the Social
Security Act, the following guidelines applied to the coverage of
clients in a Medically Needy programs:

1) If the State Plan provides Medicaid coverage to an
individual in a group, the State must provide coverage to
all members of the group.

2) Coverage must be extended to children under 18 who,
except for income or resources, would be Categorically
Needy individuals.

3) States are allowed, at their option, to extend Medically
Needy coverage to children aged 18 to 21 who would be
eligible for AFDC except for a school attendance require-
ment, or to any reasonable category of children between
18-21.

4) The State Medicaid plan must provide Medically MNeedy
assistance to pregnant women during the course of their
pregnancy if, except for their income or resources, they
would be categorically eligible.

5) The State has the discretion to extend eligibility to any
of the following groups:

8x



C.

d.

caretaker relatives in families with dependent
children (these are generally considered to be
the parent residing with the child);

aged (individuals 65 and over);

disabled;

blind.

As indicated above, in addition to children and pregnant women,
there are four optional client groups for which the State may elect
to provide Medically Needy coverage. These include the aged, the
blind, the disabled clients and/or parents in families with depen-

dent children.
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SCOPE OF MEDICAL SERVICES

As a result of provisions contained in the Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1981 (OBRA), states were allowed greater
flexibility in the scope of services available to Medically Needy
eligibles. While mandating a limited number of services to certain
groups of eligibles, OBRA was designed to provide the states with
maximum flexibility to structure their service packages to meet the
needs of each type of client.

As a result of the provisions contained in OBRA, services do not
have to be equal in amount, duration and scope for all groups. In
addition, states no longer have to provide a mixture of institu-
tional and noninstitutional services, and may offer one set of
services for one Medically Needy group without being required to
offer comparable services to another Medically Needy group. States
are also permitted to offer Medically Needy coverage to some but
not all of the groups formerly eligible.

However, the federal regulations do require a minimum number of
services if a state provides a Medically Needy program. This
includes ambulatory care services for individuals under the age of
18 and prenatal and delivery services for eligible pregnant women.

If the state elects to provide nursing home, mental hospital or
Intermediate Care for the Mentally Retarded (ICF/MR), it is also
required to provide the following services:

1. if a state provides skilled nursing home services to the
Medically Needy population, it must also provide home health
services to the same group of eligibles, and

2. if a state provides Medically Needy coverages for services in
an institution for mental diseases (IMD's) or an intermediate
care facility for the mentally retarded (ICF/MR's) for any
group of Medically Needy eligibles, it must provide either a)
the first five services listed below or b) any seven of these
services. The services must be available, however, to all
Medically Needy groups. The array of services are:

1. Inpatient hospital services (other than services in an
institution for tuberculosis or mental diseases).

2. Outpatient hospital services.
3. Laboratory and X-ray services.
4. (i) Skilled Nursing facility services (other than

services in an institution for tuberculosis or mental
diseases) for individuals 21 years of age or older.

11x



10.
11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

(i1) Early and periodic screening and diagnosis of
individuals under 21 years of age, and treatment of
conditions found.

(iii) Family planning services and supplies.

Physicians' services, whether furnished in the office,
the patient's home, a hospital, a skilled nursing home or
elsewhere.

Medical care and any other type of remedial care recog-
nized under State law, furnished by licensed practition-
ers within the scope of their practice as defined by
State law. '

Home Health Services. Nursing services, Home Health Aide
services, and medical supplies, equipment and appliances
suitable for use in the home must be provided.

Physical therapy, occupational therapy or speech
pathology and audiological services, provided by a home
health agency or by a facility licensed by the State to
provide medical rehabilitation services, are optional.

Private duty nursing services. (We do not cover this
service and could only provide this service in a
Medically Needy program only if it was also available to
categorically needy individuals.)

Clinic Services.
Dental Services

Physical therapy, occupational therapy, treatment of
speech, hearing and language disorders.

Prescribed drugs, dentures and prosthetic devices, and
eyeglasses prescribed by a physician skilled in diseases
of the eye or by an optometrist, whichever the individual
may.select.

Other diagnostic, screening, preventative and rehabil-
itative services.

Inpatient hospital services, skilled nursing facility
services, and intermediate care facility services for
individuals 65 years of age or over in an institution for
tuberculosis or mental diseases.

Intermediate care facility services (other than such

services in an institution for tuberculosis or mental
diseases) for individuals who are determined to be in
need of such care (may include ICF/MR).

-0-
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16. Inpatient psychiatric services for individuals under age
cl.

17. Nurse-midwifery services.

See Appendix E for a list of services currently offered
under the New Jersey Medicaid program.

In addition to the above requirements, the state has the option of
providing any additional services it deems advisable to adequately
meet the needs of the state's medically needy. The only proviso is
that the state cannot provide more services to a Medically Needy
eligible recipient than it does to a categorically eligible indi-
vidual. The state does, however, retain the option of providing
fewer services to the Medically Needy population.

For example, the state appears to have some flexibility in defining
ambulatory care services for children. We have recommended a
package of services for children that will meet their developmental
needs as well as comply with federal requirements. This
recommended package of services listed below, under recommendation
number 1, can be expanded or reduced in certain circumstances.

In the case of pregnant women, states are required to provide
prenatal care and delivery services to pregnant women, who except
for their income and resources, would be categorically eligible to
receive assistance. The following is an illustration of how one
state (Oregon) elected to provide this coverage. They selected 40
procedure codes related to antepartum, delivery, and six weeks
postpartum care. These procedures are the only medical services
Medically Needy pregnant women in Oregon are eligible to receive.
Therefore, the program does not cover prescriptions, or treatment
for any medical condition which may arise from the pregnancy which
is not directly related to the antepartum, delivery or postpartum
care.

Federal regulations do not require any Medically Needy coverage for
aged, blind and disabled clients. States can elect to cover these
groups and can design unique service packages for each type of
client. The state may choose, for example, to provide physical
therapy services to the disabled but not to the blind or aged.

Home health care services could be considered in the package of
services for the aged and blind, in another example, but not for
the disabled.

As can be seen, the State is given a great deal of flexibility to
establish a service package to meet the unique needs of each
optional eligibility group.
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MEDICALLY NEEDY INCOME LEVEL

Under federal regulations, the State must establish an income
standard, known as the Medically Needy Income Level (MNIL), which
applies to all individuals, regardless of age or situation, who
establish eligibility as medically needy, and which must be
adjusted by family size.

This differs from the categorical programs where different income
standards are used to determine eligibility for the Aid to Families
with Dependent Children (AFDC) and the Supplemental Security Income
(SSI) clients.

Federal regulations require the Medically Needy program to
establish a Medically Needy Income Level which is adjusted by
family size and applies equally to all the medically needy
applicants, regardless of the applicant's eligibility category.

Establishing a Medically Needy Income Level is a complex
administrative process within the guidelines established by federal
regulations (42 CFR 435.814, 435.816 and 435.1007). The process is
as follows:

The State must set a Medically Needy Income Level which,

for individuals, and families of two persons, is the
higher of the payment standard generally used to
determine financial eligibility of one and two persons
for cash payments available under the State AFDC or SSI
program;

for femilies of three or more persons, is the level of
the payment standard generally used by the AFDC program.

However, Federal Financial Participation (FFP) is not available for
medical expenses on behalf of persons who qualify as Medically
Needy or have.an income level which exceeds 133 1/3% of the highest
amount which would ordinarily be paid to a family of the same size
in the AFDC program.

In those instances where the Medically Needy Income Level
established above exceeds the income allowed for FFP, the State may
establish a lower income standard which does qualify for FFP. In
such cases, the income standard must not be less than the maximum
level allowed for federal funding.

-13-
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The following examples illustrate the process to be followed in
establishing Medically Needy Income Level for New Jersey:

PAYMENT LEVELS IN NEW JERSEY FOR AFDC AND SSI

Family Size 1 2 3 4 5 6
AFDC -—- $292 $385 $443 $501 $559
SSI $345.25 $497.36

Utilizing the process described above for a family of 4 with no
income, the State would use the following process to establish a
Medically Needy Income Level:

Current AFDC payment standard

for a family of 4 $443 This is the
minimum income
the State
could set for
a family of 4

133 .1/3% of which is $590.66
x 12 months x 12
$7,087.92
Round to the nearest $100 7,100.00
Divided by 12 months = 12
$591.66 This is the

maximum in-
come standard
for a family
of 4

In the above example, the State can establish the Medically Needy
Income Level anywhere between $443 a month to $591.66 a month and
receive FFP for the medical expenses paid by the State on behalf of
this family. - The only restriction is that the 4 person income
standard must be higher than the 3 person income standard and less
than the 5 person income standard.

Using the same process, the following is an example of the
administrative complexities in establishing the Medically Needy
Income Level for a family of two (2).

The State can use the SSI standard for a family of 2 and in New
Jersey, for example, this would be $497.36. However, FFP would
only be available for those medical expenses paid on behalf of
persons qualifying as Medically Needy based on an income level as
computed below:

-14-
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Current AFDC Standard for

a family of 2 $292.00
x 133 1/3
133 1/3% of which is $389.33
times 12 months x 12
$4,6771.96
Rounded to the nearest $100 $4,700.00
divided by 12 months - 12
for a monthly Medically
Needy Income Level of $391.66

The federal regulations also require that if 133 1/3% of the AFDC
standard is less than the SSI standard for the State, the Medically
Needy Income Level must be set at 133 1/3% of the AFDC standard. In
New Jersey, therefore, the Medically Needy Income Level cannot be
Tower than 133 1/3% of the AFDC standard.

It should be noted that the income calculations are based on the
assistance payment, (such as $292 for a family of 2 in the AFDC
program), and not on any other standard; such as the 185% gross
income level utilized by the AFDC program to determine if a family
might be eligible for assistance.

In determining eligibility for a Medically Needy program, the State
must establish the amount of available income (42 CFR 435.831).
This includes the amount of income the individual/family receive on
a regular basis or has control over. In addition to the amounts
actually received, States also must take into account the financial
responsibility of the spouse, for a spouse, and of parents for
children who are under 21 or blind or disabled (42 CFR 435.602).
Persons whose income is assumed to be available to the applicant
are included in the household size to determine the appropriate
income standard to be applied to the applicant. Once eligibility
is established, the responsible relative is not eligible for
benefits.

After determining available income (gross income), the client's
income is reduced by disregards appropriate to that eligibility
group. For families and individuals under age 21 disregards, such
as work expenses and child care costs used in determining
eligibility for the Aid to Families With Dependent Children (AFDC),
would be deducted from gross income. For aged, blind or disabled
individuals, the amounts that would be disregarded in determining
eligibility for Supplemental Security Income (SSI) such as the
disregard of the first $20.00 of income would be deducted from
gross income.

After disregards are determined, those with countable (net) income
below the Medically Needy Income Level are eligible without cost to
the individual. Those with countable (net) income above the MNIL
must "spend-down" to establish eligibility by incurring medical
expenses in an amount equal to their excess income.

-15-
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If institutional services are provided under the Medically Needy
program, most of the information above does not apply, including
the 133 1/3% limitation. Applicants would have to incur medical
expenses equal to net income, (after appropriate disregards), in
excess of the 300% CAP higher income standard, currently $882.00.
After financial eligibility has been established, any available
income above the amount allowed for personal needs allowance,
currently $25.00 per month, would have to be applied to the cost of
medical care.

There appears to be a great deal of confusion concerning the
Medically Needy Income Level (MNIL) used for aged, blind or
disabled individuals and couples. Many of the Medically Needy
advocate groups erroneously believe it is set at 133 1/3% of the
State's SSI standard for aged, disabled and blind clients and

133 1/3% of the AFDC standard for children and pregnant women.
However, as indicated above, the Medically Needy Income Level is
set no higher than 133 1/3% of the appropriate AFDC standard for
the family size for all client groups in order to receive federal
funding.

As indicated in the examples in the background and in Appendix B,
the federal regulations result in a MNIL for a two person household
which can be less than the SSI standard, yet greater than the AFDC
standard. In New Jersey, the Medically Needy Income Level for a
two person household can be set at no lower than $391.66 per month,
which is $103.62 less than the SSI standard and $99.66 greater than
the AFDC standard for a two person household. However, the
Medically Needy program does not differentiate between client type
in establishing an income standard. Thus, both mother and child,
as well as an elderly couple, must meet the same income standard to
qualify for the Medically Needy program.

As can be seen in Appendix B, New Jersey is not alone in having an
SSI income standard substantially higher than the AFDC standard.
Currently, 31 states have a Medically Needy program, and the
majority of the states have Medically Needy Income Levels which are
less than the state's SSI standard for a couple.

Under federal regulations, the state has the option of establishing
a Medically Needy Income Level above 133 1/3% of the AFDC payment
level; however, federal funding is not available for these costs.
While some senior citizen groups may advocate setting a higher
standard and funding these costs with casino dollars, this approach
would result in numerous problems for the State.
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First, since the State must set a single Medically Needy Income
Level for all eligibles, many of the costs incurred would not be
eligible for casino funding. Because a mother and child are
eligible under the same standards that are used for an aged, blind
or disabled couple, only a portion of the State's costs could be
covered by casino funding.

Secondly, federal regulations also require that the Medically Needy
Income Level must be adjusted by family size. Therefore, if the
state established a Medically Needy Income Level for a two person’
household based upon the SSI standard, the income for a three and
four person household would also have to be adjusted above the
Tevel for which federal funding is available.

The chart below illustrates this point. The first set of figures
represent the maximum income level the state could utilize to
receive FFP for all medical benefits, while the second line of
figures illustrates a standard based upon SSI standards. These
latter figures have been advocated by several groups supporting the
implementation of a Medically Needy program.

DIFFERENCES IN INCOME STANDARDS BETWEEN FEDERAL
MEDICALLY NEEDY INCOME LEVEL AND
STANDARDS BASED ON SSI BENEFIT LEVELS

Family Size 1 2 3 4 5 6

Maximum Income
for FFP $391.66 391.66 516.66 591.66 675.00 750.00

Standard Based
on 133 1/3% of
SSI Standard $457.58 660.42 665.42 670.72

Difference -$65.92 -%$268.76 -$148.76 -$78.76

As illustrated by the above chart, for a one person household, the
state would have to fund the difference between the 133 1/3% SSI
standard and the required Medically Needy standard ($65.92) solely
with State dollars for each eligible individual. In the case of
the two person household, the State would have to fund, wholly,
with State dollars, the first $268.76 in medical benefits for each
case.

Since the State is required to increase the income standard for
each additional family member, the three person household income
standard would have to be established in excess of $660.42.
Assuming a minimum $5.00 increase, the State would have to absorb
the first $148.76 in benefits for a three person household and
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$78.76 of benefits in a four person household. Only when the State
reached the five person household would FFP be available for all
medical expenses. These numbers assume, however, that the State
increases the standard by only $5.00 for each additional member of
the household.

Finally, if a state elects to establish a Medically Needy Income
Level above the maximum allowable for FFP, the State must
demonstrate its ability to track these costs to assure that federal
funding is not claimed prior to each client's medical bills
reducing their income to the federal MNIL. This need to track each
client's income and medical bills would require a highly complex
computerized system. Currently, the Division does not have a
system capable of providing these requirements.
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MEDICALLY NEEDY RESQURCE STANDARD

Under federal regulations, the State must establish a Tiquid
resource standard which applies to all individuals and families,
who establish eligibility as Medically Needy. This resource
standard must be adjusted for family size. _

The resource standards must be as high as those used for the
highest cash assistance program. At the present time the AFDC
Program has a $1,000.00 family resource standard. The SSI resource
standard is currently $1,500.00/%2,250.00 but under the Deficit
Reduction Act of 1984 (DEFRA) that amount will be increased by
$100.00 for an individual and $150.00 effective January 1985.
Legislation allows for possible further increases in future years.
(See Appendix F for a list of those items considered resources).

The resource standard could be set at the SSI level of $1,500.00

(single)/$2,250.00 (couples) and raised to the appropriate level

based upon the DEFRA regulations, or set at any level above those
figures. (Subject to Federal approval.)

However, based upon the Division's experience with the Community
Care Program for the Elderly and Disabled (CCPED), the SSI resource
levels appear insufficient to cover emergencies that might occur
when the client is living in the community. It has been shown that
some elderly and disabled clients do not participate in the CCPED
program due to the stringent resource limitation.

States may elect to establish resource levels above those for the
categorical programs, and may adjust these limits annually.
However, Federal approval of the proposed asset limit must be
obtained by the State.

A review of the resource standards for the Medically Needy programs
in 28 states and the District of Columbia indicates that states
have a wide variation in their resource eligibility standards for
different types of assets. For liquid assets, many states have
established a $1,500 standard for an individual; $2,250 for a
two-person house, plus a range of $25 to $300 for each additional
household member.

However, several states, use a higher federally approved standard.
Some examples are Kansas ($1,800 and $2,400, respectively);
Kentucky ($1,500 and $3,000); Maryland ($2,500 and $2,600);
Massachusetts ($2,000 and $3,000); Minnesota ($3,000 and $6,000);
New Hampshire ($3,500 and $4,000, that includes the equity value of

-19-
22X



all Tlife insurance policies); Morth Dakota ($3,000 and $4,500);
Pennsylvania ($2,400 and $3,200); and Rhode Island ($4,000 and
$6,000). New York State does not have a set figure for their
Medically Needy resource standard. In New York, they utilize
one-ha1f of the appropriate yearly income exemption to establish
the liquid asset level. Currently, for a one person household, the
standard is $2,100; for a two person household $3,050 and $50 for
each additional household member.

The benefit of increasing the liquid resource limit in excess of
the highest categorically related assistance standard would be to
increase the number of eligibles for the Medically Needy program.

There are, however, several inequities in increasing the liquid
resource 1imit above the level used for the categorically related
programs.

Raising the resource standards would allow those with more
income than the AFDC recipient to retain more assets than an
AFDC or SSI eligible individual and still be eligible for
certain Medicaid benefits.

In addition, an increase in the liquid asset 1imit standard
for the Medically Needy program could discourage enrollment in
the CCPED waiver since that program currently must utilize the
SSI standard for resource eligibility.

However, it should be noted that at least ten (10) states and

the District of Columbia have determined that these ineguities are
insufficient to outweigh the advantages of establishing the Med-
ically Needy resource standards at a limit greater than the AFDC or
SSI standard.
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BUDGETING PERIODS

For the Medically Needy program, federal regulations require a
State to establish a budget period for medical eligibility of not
less than one month, nor more than six months in duration. After
the budget period has expired, it is necessary to redetermine the
applicant's eligibility for Medicaid. It must be noted, however,
that whatever budget period the State has selected to utilize for
a determination of eligibility, federal procedure requires that,
in general, the State must apply the budget period consistently
across all groups of recipients and for all types of services.

States have budget periods for their Medically Needy programs
anywhere from one to three to six months for a variety of
reasons. According to the data base maintained by the National
Governor's Association, twenty of the states which have a
Medically Needy program utilize a six month period of
eligibility. Of the twenty states which use a six month
accounting period, however, five noted they have exceptions,
including one state which allows the applicant to elect the
budgeting period applicable to his case. Arkansas, Kentucky,
Louisiana and Montana utilize a three month budget period while
California, Hawaii, North Dakota and Utah use a one month period
to determine eligibility.

The following material outlines the advantages and inequities of
establishing a one month or six month perjod for budgeting
purposes for both the applicant and the administering agency.

. One Month Budget Period

Utilizing a one month budget period permits a State to
closely monitor the eligibility process and the error rate.
This is particularly true in instances where available
income varies from month to month.

Administratively, however, it is more costly for a state to
redetermine eligibility monthly. Several states have made a
determination that the benefits of monthly budget periods
outweigh the costs. For example, New York City has
instituted a monthly budgeting period for their Medically
Needy program as a corrective measure to reduce the Medicaid
Quality Control error rate.

For the recipient, there is an obvious inconvenience in
having their eligibility redetermined monthly. In addition,
depending on the cash flow into the household, a monthly
budgeting period could create an inequity for differing
patterns of income.

For example, assume there are two households each with three
persons and each household will receive $2,700 income over
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the next six months.
regularly over the six months
income will vary.

One household will receive the income
but the other household’'s
Also assume that for this example, the

Medically Needy Income Level is $400 a month and there is a
one month budgeting period.

Regular
Income

1st Month
2nd Month
3rd Month
4th Month
5th Month
6th Month

TOTAL FOR
6 Months

Irregular
Income

1st Month
2nd Month
3rd Month
4th Month
5th Month
6th Month

TOTAL FOR
6 Months

ONE MONTH ACCOUNTING PERIOD VIEWED FOR SIX MONTH'S

Future Bills Client’s

Spend- Total Covered Net
Countable down Medical by Medical
Income Liability Expenses Medicaid Expenses
$ 450 $ 50 $100 Yes $ 50
450 50 25 No 25
450 50 150 Yes 50
450 50 50 . Yes 50
450 50 75 Yes 50
450 50 30 No 30
$2,700 $300 $430 $255
ONE MONTH ACCOUNTING PERIOD
Future Bills Client's
Spend- Total Covered Net
Countable down Medical by Medical
Income Liability Expenses Medicaid Expenses
$ 500 $100 $100 Yes $100
300 0 25 Yes 0
600 200 150 No 150
400 0 50 Yes 0
500 100 75 No 75
400 0 30 Yes 0
$2,700 $400 $430 $325
-22-
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As can be seen by this example, although both households
received the same amount of countable income for a «ix month
period of time, due to differences in the cash flow of the
income and the use of a one month budget period, one
household incurred more out-of-pocket medical expences than
the other.

However, there is an advantage to certain applicants if a
one month budgeting period is utilized. This occurs for
those applicants who have incurred large medical expenses in
a short period of time. The example usually given is in the
situation of a hospitalization, but could occur in the case
of an unexpected illness, an accident or purchase of a large
expensive item, such as dentures, a prosthetic device or a
hearing aid. As a result of monthly budgeting periods, the
individual could meet the spend-down limit for a month but
would not be able to do so if the medical expenses were
budgeted over a longer period of time.

. Six Month Budget Period

For the agency administering a Medically Needy program, a
six month eligibility period can be less costly but also
affords less opportunity for the agency to monitor for
quality control accuracy. Many states advocate the six
month budget period because they maintain that it provides
eligibility to applicants who are truly medically needy and
have ongoing and unmet medical needs. It does not,
therefore, provide services to those individuals who are not
medically needy, but have a one-time large medical expense.

For the recipient, a six month budget period can be
advantageous because once eligibility is established, there
is a longer period of time before a redetermination of
eligibility is required to be completed.

In certain circumstances, a six month budgeting period can
again be advantageous for the recipient in terms of the
amount of expenses the applicant is responsible for, in
addition to the medical coverage. The example below
illustrates this point. In this illustration, it is assumed
that the 3-person household has income which varies monthly
and also that the Medically Needy Income Level is $400. As
can be seen, the six month budget period is more favorable
than the one month budget period to the recipient with
variable income because the recipient incurs $25 less in net
medical expenses over the same period of time.
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SIX MONTH ACCOUNTING PERIOD WITH A SPEND-DOWN
LIABILITY OF $300 FOR SIX MONTHS

Remaining Client's
_ Spend- Total Future Bills  Net
Countable down Medical Paid by Medical
Income Liability Expenses Medicaid  Expenses
Irregular
Income
Ist Month § 500 $300 $100 No $100
2nd Month 300 200 25 No 25
3rd Month 600 175 150 No 150
4th Month 400 25 50 Yes 25
5th Month 500 0 75 Yes 0
6th Month 400 0 30 Yes 0
TOTAL FOR
6 Months $2,700 $700 $430 $300
ONE MONTH ACCOUNTING PERIOD VIEWED FOR SIX MONTHS
Client's
Spend- Total Future Bills Net
Countable down Medical Paid by Medical
Income Liability Expenses Medicaid Expenses
Irregular
Income
1st Month $ 500 $100 $100 Yes $100
2nd Month 300 0 25 Yes 0
3rd Month 600 200 150 No 150
4th Month 400 0 50 Yes 0
5th Month 500 100 75 No 75
6th Month 400 0 30 Yes 0
TOTAL FOR
6 Months $2,700 $400 $430 $325
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However, in another example, using the same six month total
income, the same household size and the same medically needy
standard, but using a different cash flow situation (in this
case, a regular monthly income), it can be seen that a six
month budgeting period would not be as equitable as a one month
budget period to the applicant in terms of net medical

expenses.
SIX MONTH ACCOUNTING PERIOD WITH A SPEND-DOWN
LIABILITY OF $300 FOR SIX MONTHS
Remaining Client's
Spend- Total Future Bills Net
Countable down Medical Paid by Medical
: Income Liability Expenses Medicaid Expenses
Regular
Income
Ist Month $ 450 $300 $100 No $100
2nd Month 450 200 25 No 25
3rd Month 450 175 150 No 150
4th Month 450 25 50 Yes 25
5th Month 450 0 75 Yes 0
6th Month 450 0 30 Yes 0
TOTAL FOR
6 Months $2,700 $700 $430 $300
ONE MONTH ACCOUNTING PERIOD VIEWED FOR SIX MONTHS
Client's
Spend- Total Future Bills Net
Countable down Medical Paid by Medical
Income Liability Expenses Medicaid  Expenses
Regular
Income
Ist Month $ 450 $ 50 $100 Yes $ 50
2nd Month 450 50 25 No 25
3rd Month 450 50 150 Yes 50
4th Month 450 50 50 Yes 50
5th Month 450 50 75 Yes 50
6th Month 450 50 30 No 30
TOTAL FOR
6 Months $2,700 $300 $430 $255



There are other instances when a six month budget period can
be inequitable for some applicants. Using an example of an
individual applying for assistance who primarily receives
ambulatory care services and has a large spend-down
Tiability. Since the total liability for the six month
budget period must be incurred prior to eligibility, a
person who utilizes ambulatory services, such as pharmacy
and physician, may find it more difficult to receive credit
for the spend-down liability than another individual who
received primarily institutional services, such as
hospitalization during the same budget period.

Therefore, whatever budget period a state elects to utilize
to determine eligibility for a Medically Needy program,
there will be both costs and benefits to the administering
agency, and both advantagas and inequities to the appiicants
for such assistance.

In addition to reviewino the advantages and disadvantages of
the different budget periods, the Division staff completed a
statistical analysis of the error rate for each State with a
Medically Needy program using the figures from Appendix D
with each state's selected budget period. The analysis did
not show any correlation between the accounting period and
the State's Medicaid Quality Control error rates.
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OTHER ISSUES

In addition to the major issues discussed in previous sections, there
are other policy decisions which will affect the administration and
implementation of a Medically Needy program. They include:

cost-share provisions

spend-down and "Incurred" medical expense requ1rements
Federal approval of the State Plan

Proposed Federal changes to the program and how it is
effected by the Deficit Reduction Act of 1984 (DEFRA).

SN —

Each of these issues will be discussed below to provide a brief overview
of the background and the problem areas.

COST SHARE PROVISIONS

. In implementing a Medically Needy program, a state has the option
to impose a cost sharing requirement for eligible individuals. The
cost share payment may be an enroliment fee, premium, deductible,
co-insurance, co-payment or similar cost sharing charges.

Federal regulations allow the states to impose a cost share payment
on a Medically Needy individual within certain limitations. For
example, the State may impose an enroliment fee based on family
income with a minimum charge of $1.00 a month for certain families
and a maximum charge prescribed by federal regulations. For
non-institutional services, the state may elect to impose a deduct-
ible not to exceed $2.00 a month per family. Coinsurance on
non-institutional services may be established if it does not exceed
5 percent of the agency's payment for the services. Copayments on
non-institutional services are governed by a sliding scale estab-
lTished by regulation. (See Appendix D.) For institutional
services the agency may impose a cost share which does not exceed
50% of the cost of the first day of care in the institution.
Effective October 1, 1982, no cost share may be imposed in the
following instances:

1. services provided to children under 18 or 21 at the
State's discretion;

2. services related to pregnancy or any medical condition
which may complicate the pregnancy;

3. services provided to patients in SNF's or ICF's;

4, family planning services; and

5 emergency services.

In addition to the federal restrictions on cost-share noted
above, P.L. 1984, c.56 (N.J.A.C. 30:4D-6 et. seq.) a New
Jersey statute, prohibits imposing any "copayment or other
form of cost sharing" on any individual eligible for medical
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assistance except as mandated by federal law as a condition of
federal financial participation.

SPEND-DOWN AND INCURRED MEDICAL EXPENSES

In implementing a Medically Needy program, the state must allow for
the deduction of incurred medical expenses if the client's income
exceeds the income standard. This process of deductions is known
as spend-down. Once the deduction of incurred medical expenses
reduces the applicant's countable income to the Medically Needy
Income Level, the individual is eligible for Medicaid for the
balance of the eligibility period.

Federal regulations govern the type and order in which incurred
medical expenses are deducted from countable income in order to
establish eligibility. The order is as follows:

a) Medicare and other health insurance premiums, deductibles
and coinsurance charges. The state may set a reasonable
1imit on these incurred expenses.

b) Incurred expenses for necessary medical and remedial
services not covered under the Medically Needy program.

c) Incurred expenses for necessary medical and remedial
services covered under the Medically Needy program. The
state may also establish a reasonable Timit on these
incurred medical expenses.

If the income of a family member or a financially responsible
relative was considered in the determination of financial eligibil-
ity, their incurred medical expenses may also be considered,
although they may not themselves be eligible for assistance.

The spend-down process is illustrated by the following:

Example 1: Assume a family of four with an annual
countable income of $10;000 or $833.33 a month
and a one month budget period.

$833.33 Monthly income

-591.66 Maximum Medically Needy Income
Level for family of 4

$241.67 Family's spend-down liability
for the month
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Medical expenses:
a) Family has health insurance coverage
which costs $50/month $ 50
b) Mother has an emergency room bill
(mother is not eligible for

Medically Needy) 125

c) Child has allergies and has a
physician's office visit and 25
medication 45
$245

From the time the family incurred the last medical bills
totalling $241.67, Medically Needy coverage would be available
to the eligible family members until the end of the month. In
this example, using a one month budgetary period, the family
would have to reapply for assistance the first day of the
following month and would have to incur an additional $241.67
in medical expenses before they could receive benefits under
the Medically Needy program again.

Example 2: Using the same family and a six month budget
: period

$5,000.00 Semi-Annual Income

-3,549.96 Maximum Medically Needy Income
Standard for six months

$1,450.04 Spend-down liability

For this example, a family of four would be eligible for
Medicaid after they have incurred $1,450.04 in medical bills
in the semi-annual period of eligibility. If they applied
January 1 and they incurred $1,450.04 in medical expenses by
March 10, the clients would be covered under the Medically
Needy program until June 30, then the eligibility
determination process would begin again, and a new spend-down
Tiability would be computed.

As part of the federal regulations, the state must insure that
those incurred medical expenses counted towards the spend-down
in one eligibility period are not counted in another period.
In addition, the state must ensure that the incurred medical
expenses are not subsequently paid by the Medicaid program.

Federal guidelines permit only unpaid medical expenses
incurred prior to the date of application, which remain the
liability of the applicant, to be applied toward the
spend-down. At any time after the application has been filed,
even prior to the date the application is approved, the
applicant may pay outstanding medical bills and have them
count as incurred expenses. This rule is applied as follows:
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(1) PRIOR TO APPLICATION DATE

An applicant obtains medical services and receives a
bill. In order to have this bill count toward
spend-down in the initial period, the bill cannot be
paid.

(2) APPLICATION DATE

The applicant submits all unpaid medical bills, and
they are applied to the client's spend-down
requirements.

(3) POST-APPLICATION

The applicant may now pay all outstanding medical
bills, and all these bills, whether paid or
remaining unpaid, can still be applied to the
spend-down. Such bills, even if paid after the
application filing date but before the application
processing date, can be applied to the spend-down.

Due to these requirements, clients are encouraged to incur,
but not pay for, medical care until eligibility has been
established.

Once eligibility has been established, Medicaid will
prospectively reimburse providers for the client's medical
care. However, the bills used to meet the spend-down
requirement remain the liability of the client. During each
budget period providers will be required to bill the client
for services prior to eligibility and then bill Medicaid for
services after eligibility has been established.

For example, Mr. C. incurs medical expenses totalling $500,
equal to his spend-down liability, on February 25, as a result
of medical services rendered by Dr. Z. The applicant, Mr. C.,
will be responsible for the $500, but medical services
rendered by Dr. Z. from February 25 to June 30 will be
reimbursed by the Medicaid program.

On July 1, a new eligibility determination is required and a
new spend-down liability will have to be incurred by Mr. C.
In this second eligibility period, Mr. C. does not incur the
$500 in medical expenses until October 23. Dr. Z. will
therefore have to bill Mr. C for medical services from July 1
through October 23, at which time Mr. C. will again be
eligible for the Medicaid program and Dr. Z. can again begin
submitting bills for any further medical services to the
Medicaid program for reimbursement.
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The changing liability for reimbursement of medical services
will be confusing to the provider community and to recipients.

FEDERAL APPROVAL OF THE STATE PLAN

Prior to the effective date of a Medically Needy program, the State
Plan must be prepared and forwarded to HCFA officials for their
approval.

Federal Medicaid law describes the requirements that State Medicaid
Plans must meet if they are to be approved by the Secretary of
Health and Human Services. The plan must be amended whenever
necessary to reflect any change in State law, organization, policy
or State agency operation. If approved, Federal Financial Par-
ticipation (FFP) is available for additional expenditures resulting
from an amended provision of the State Plan as of the first day of
the calendar quarter in which an approvable amendment is submitted
or the date on which the amended provision becomes effective in the
State, whichever is later.

As a result of several provisions contained in the Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1981, States were given increased flexibility
to establish the eligibility requirements for a Medically Needy
program. For several requirements, the federal regulations indi-
cate the state must establish reasonable standards. These
standards must be approved by the Secretary in order to receive
federal matching funds.

PROPOSED FEDERAL REGULATIONS

The Department of Health and Human Services in the September 2,
1983 issue of the Federal Register published proposed rule
revisions for the Medically Needy program. These proposed rules
are tentatively scheduled to be finalized in December, 1984.

"On September 2, 1983 the Health Care Financing Administration
published proposed rules which would amend 42 CFR 435 and 42 CFR
436. The proposed rules would revise the spend-down process by
which medical expenses are considered in determining eligibility
for the Medically Needy program. According to the Department of
Health and Human Services' semi-annual regulatory agenda, published
in the Federal Register of April 19, 1984, the tentative date for
publication of the final rules is December, 1984.

The issues covered by the proposed rules include:

.Medically Needy budget period;

.Exclusion from incurred medical expenses those bills
for services rendered more than three months prior
to a Medicaid application;
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.Application of incurred medical expenses to the
spend-down period in chronological order;
.Limiting deductible medical expenses to services
covered under the State Plan, and

.Consideration of projected institutional expenses
at the Medicaid rate as incurred medical expenses.

The following is a synopsis of the current regulations and the
proposed changes for each of the above mentioned issues:

Medically Needy Budget Period. Current regulations allow the
State to establish a Medically Needy prospective budget period
of between one and six months. Incurred medical expenses are
deducted from countable income, and when the individual's
income reaches the Medically Needy Income Level, eligibility
is established. In addition to this prospective period of
eligibility, Medicaid regulations require that Medicaid
benefits must be provided up to three months prior to the
month in which the application is filed if the individual
would have been eligible for Medicaid at the time services are
rendered.

Although federal regulations require these separate eligibil-
ity periods, there is no statutory requirement to use separate
budget periods. States which currently are administering
Medically Needy programs indicate that the present regulations
create administrative difficulties and allow individuals to
avoid the application of budget periods of more than one month
by applying monthly for retroactive eligibility.

The proposed rules revise the current regulations to allow
states to use a Medically Needy budget period of no more than
six months but which may include all or part of the three
month retroactive period.

Exclusion from Incurred Medical Expenses those bills for
services rendered more than three months prior to a Medicaid
application. Current regulations provide that any bills
incurred prior to the period for which eligibility is de-
termined may be applied to the spend-down only if they are
unpaid, and remain a current obligation of the individual.
This creates administrative problems for states because, a)
the State must insure the bills are counted towards spend-down
only once; b) the State must verify that the applicant remains
liable for the bill; and c) an incentive is created for
applicants not to pay their medical bills.

The proposed regulations would allow states to exclude from
incurred medical expenses any bills older than three months
except for current payments on older bills not previously
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applied towards a spend-down liability. The regulations would
also propose that bills not deducted in one budget period must
be carried over and deducted in the immediate subsequent
eligibility period.

Application of incurred medical expenses to the spend-down
period in chronological order. Current regulations require
that States deduct incurred medical expenses from an in-
dividual's countable income in a prescribed order. This
requirement creates administrative difficulties because
presently bills are not counted in the order in which they are
incurred. In addition, the current regulation increases
Medicaid expenditures because expenses which are included in
the State plan are deducted subsequent to medical expenses not
covered in the plan.

The proposed regulations would allow States the flexibility of
using the current order of deductions or implementing a system
which deducts incurred expenses in either the order in which
they occur or the order they are presented to the agency that
determines eligibility.

Limit deductible medical expenses to services covered under
the State plan. Current regulations require that a state
deduct from countable income all medical expenses including
those not covered under the State plan. States have argued
that this is an indirect subsidy for those services and also
that it results in earlier eligibility and increased Medicaid
costs.

The Department of Health and Human Services has requested
comments on changing this provision. They note, however, that
the Department would still require deductions for health
insurance premiums, deductibles and copayments. The current
requirement that states would not be allowed to limit the
amount, duration and scope of the deductible services would
continue.

Consideration of projected institutional expenses at the
Medicaid rate as incurred medical expenses. Current policy
requires that in the case of an institutionalized individual
whose income exceeds the Medically Needy Income Level, the
state must deduct incurred institutional expenses at the
institution's private pay rate. In addition, a state may
project these costs to determine eligibility.

The proposed revised regulations would allow states to project
the institutional expenses at the Medicaid rate if they also
elect to authorize Medicaid eligibility on the first day of
institutionalization in any budget period.

Because we do not anticipate including institutional care as one of
the services included in the Medically Needy program, this section
of the proposed revisions would not have an impact at this time.
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PRELIMINARY LIST OF PROGRAM ACTIVITIES NECESSARY
10 IMPLEMENT A MEDICALLY NEEDY PROGRAM

Policy Planning

At least three months will be required to review recommendations
and develop policies for a Medically Needy program. Timely imple-
mentation of a program of this maanitude will require extensive
cooperation between all agencies in State and County government.

Obtain Cooperation of Other Governmental Agencies

Implementation of a Medically Needy program will affect many other
agencies within the State government. In order to implement a
program of this magnitude, a clear directive from the Governor's
Office will be needed to assure cooperation of Civil Service, the
Department of Treasury and all the other Agencies and Departments
with which the Division must interact in order to implement this
program. A list of these agencies is contained in Appendix G.

Revision of Eligibility File and Modification of the Fiscal Agent
Claims Processing System

A minimum of one year will be required to complete the system
modifications needed to assure timely processing of Medically Needy
claims. A mechanism will have to be established to identify each
client group to assure collection of data used to charge costs to
the Casino and the State Aid Accounts. Edits will be developed to
assure each client group receives only those services provided for
in the State plan.

Currently, staff from both the Division and the Hospital Service
Plan of New Jersey (Blue Cross) have begun a major revision of the
Medicaid Eligibility File. At the same time, Divisional staff are
in the process of developing the REDI system. This system will
allow providers to verify a client's eligibility using their office
telephone. Both these projects represent a major undertaking by
the Division to improve its ability to provide services to its
clients. It is unlikely that the revision of the eligibility file
will be completed in less than eighteen months unless massive
resources are devoted to this project. We cannot, however, use the
existing Eligibility File and must reprogram in order to have a
usable system. However, we have been advised by the fiscal agent
that just reprogramming the existing Medicaid eligibility file will
not provide the required data for the special requirements of a
Medically Needy program. This will necessitate devoting additional
resources to develop a revamped system.

Currently, the County Welfare Agencies (CWA) utilize the CODES
system at the Division of Public Welfare (DPW) to input AFDC data
to the Medicaid Eligibility File. The proposed successor to CODES,
the FAMIS system also will only accommodate data on AFDC clients.
Therefore, the Division will require a system to allow the counties
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4)

7)

to have direct input from the CWA to the Medicaid Eligibility File.
This will require terminal installation in each county office.

Amend Fiscal Agent Contracts

The' Division will be required to amend the contracts with its
Fiscal Agents, the Hospital Service Plan of New Jersey and the
Prudential Insurance Company. Approximately six months will be
required to amend these contracts “o include a Medicallv Needy
program.

Reprogkamming Existing Computer Generated Reports

Currently over 100 management and surveillance reports are produced
monthly for the Division. All of these reports will have to be
modified. The on-line data base maintained for the Division by the
Treasury Data Center will require modifications to accommodate the
Medically Meedy population. In addition to additional system
analysts in the Division, the Medicaid Fiscal Agents and the
Treasury Data Center will require additiore! staff to reprogram the
entire Medicaid reporting system. ’

The primary objective of the Fiscal Agent's programming efforts
will be directed toward modifying the claims processing system in
order to assure timely payment of claims. Therefore, changes to
the reporting systems may not be completed before clients begin
receiving services. Approximately eighteen months will be required
to complete the system changes to the Medicaid reporting system.

Develop New Jersey Register Proposals

Proposed regulations and numerous changes to the Provider Manuals
and the eligibility manuals on file in the Administrative Code will
be required for publication in the New Jersey Register.

Approximately six months will be required to develop and publish
the initial proposals. An additional three months will be required
to review the comments received on the announcement and to adopt
the final regulations.

Develop Newsletters Bulletins, Procedural Directives and Forms

The Division will be required to develop new forms for the new
client groups such as worksheets to be used to record incurred
medical bills. Newsletters and revised Manuals will have to be
sent to all provider groups to familiarize them with the service
packages for each client group. At least eight months will be
required to develop forms and dratt newsletters, and manual re-
visions and to print and disseminate them.

Identify, Establish and Fill New Positions

Implementation of a Medically Needy program will require numerous
additional pesitions within the Division of Medical Assistance and
Health Services.
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10)

11)

Additionally, there will be a significant staff impact on the
Fiscal Agents, the various data centers and other organizations
which will be affected by a major program 1ike Medically Needy.
Currently, standards to be used in developing the Division's
additional staffing requirements are being refined. A complete
1ist of titles and duties will be prepared and submitted to the
Commissioner as soon as major decisions are made and the focus of
the major functions is determined.

A task force should be established comprised of staff from the
Division of Medical Assistance and Health Services, the Division of
Public Welfare and the County Welfare Agencies to identify the
positions that would be reaquired in the County Welfare Agencies if
a Medically Needy program is implemented. The Department will also
require the full support of the Department of Civil Service, the
Department of Treasury, and the Office of Management and Budget to
establish the reauired positions in a timely manner.

Obtain Additional Space

The addition of new positions will require the Division to obtain
additional office space. The exact amount and locations of this
space will be completed following the staffing review currently in
progress. The Department will require the complete cooperation of
the Department of Treasury in order to obtain the required space in
a timely manner.

Amend State Plan

The establishment of a Medically Needy program requires an amend-
ment to the New Jersey Title XIX State plan. The amendments must
include information regarding the scope of services and eligible
clients, the eligibility standard, the resource limits, and other
information. Federal approval of the amendments to the State Plan
is required to receive federal funding for the program. Prepara-
tion and submission of the State Plan amendments will require
approximately six months.

Develop Manual of Operations

A manual defining the administrative procedures to be followed for
a Medically Needy program must be developed. This manual will
include information on Divisional policies, scope of services,
eligible client groups, etc. Approximately six months will be
required to complete the operations manual.
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12) Train New and Existing Employees

Implementation of a Medically Needy program will have a major
effect on Divisional operations. Training will be required in
order

for all staff to become familiar with the requirements of a Med-
ically Needy program. In addition, the CWA staff will require
extensive training on the eligibility determination activities
which are unique to the Medically Needy program.

13) Revise Interagency Agreements

The Division will be required to revise its agreements with other

state agencies to accommodate the Medically Needy population. For
example, the agreement with the Division of Criminal Justice will

require a modification to assure the Medically Needy population is
included for fraud and abuse reviews.

14) Outreach the Public and Providers

The Division may be required to outreach potential clients, educate
the provider community and provide information on the program to
the legislature and other public officials. Included in this
outreach, The Division will develop a mechanism to outreach

the PAAD population through a mailing to that client group.

The Division will be required to publish brochures on the Medically
Needy program for distribution in State and county offices through-
out the State.

The Division's provider groups will require information on the
Medically Needy population. In addition to the previously men-
tioned newsletters, the Division will be required to provide
additional information on issues such as scope of service for each
client group and the client's responsibility for the "spend-down"
bills. etc.

It should be noted that most of the activities described above will
require additional resources to initiate and complete, therefore it
should be understood that the time frames begin (in most instances)
after the staff has been recruited to perform these new duties.
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A

Preliminary List of Program Activities Necessary to Implement a Medically Needy Program

Policy Planning

Obtain Cooperation of
other Government Agencies

Revision of Eligibility File and
Modification of the Fiscal Agent
Claims Processing System

Amend Fiscal Agent Contracts

Reprogramming Existing Computer
Generated Reports

Nevelop Newsletters, Bulletins,
Procedural Directives, and Forms

Identify, Establish and Fill New
Positions

Obtain Additional Space

Amend State Plan

Develop Manual of Operations
Train New and Existing Employees
Revise Interagency Aqreements‘
Outreach the Public

Develop ''ew Jersey Register
Proposais

0 month
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12months 15months 18months
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APPENDIX B

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE AND HEALTH SERVICES

COMPARISON OF SSI AND MEDICALLY NEEDY INCOME LEVEL (1)

STATE SS1 - STANDARD (1) MEDICALLY NEEDY
T Person - 2 Person CEVEL (2)
T Person - 2 Person

Arkansas 314 472 175 183

California Aged/Disabled 477 886 459 709
Blind 535 1041
Connecticut 466.10 585.30 341 466
D.C. 329 502 300 314
(Net figures)
Hawaii . 318.90 480.80 300 400
I1linois budgeted jindividually 238 333
Kansas 314 472 310 410
- Kentucky 314 472 192 225
Louisiana 314 472 167 192
Maine 324 487 270 325
Maryland 314 472 267 309
Massachusetts Aged 442 .82 673.72 333 425
Blind 463.74 927.48
Disabled 428.39 652.06
Michigan 338.30 . 508.40 309 463
Minnesota 349 538 313 393
Montana 314 472 314 375
Nebraska 381 572 375 375
New Hampshire 328 473 252 346
New York _ 374.91 548.03 350 508
Revised 11/84 -46-
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STATE

North Carolina
North Dakota
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
Tennessee
Utah

Vermont
Virginia
Washington
HWest Virginia

Wisconsin

(1) Source - National Governor's Association

(2) Source - Commerce Clearing House - In some instances more current
information was available in State Medically Needy

SSI - STANDARD (1)

1 person - 2 person

MEDICALLY NEEDY

314
314
383
315.17
346.30
365.98
314
324
364
314
352.30
314
413.70

-47-

= at

472
472
616
472

520.
570.

472
492
535
472

508.

472
633

70
30

.50

40

LEVEL _ (2)

1 person - 2 person
183 241
265 385
265 327

327 M5
350 366
408 450
117 135
287 385
332 514
325 366
343 493
200 225
404 575



APPEMDIX C

: Table I . A ,
COST-SHARING PROVISIONS
COPAYMENT, COINSURANCE, DEDUCTIBLES
AS OF DECIMBER 1983 o L
. Prdcedgre/Service Charges Imposed . Extanded Exemptions of
’ . gor which Copayment on Recipients Optional Provasions
°. State : 1s Imposed MN CN ) - Under TEFFA
-~ Alabama -Prescription Drug $7.25 or less=-$.50
’ . Refills o 7.26-22.25 1.00

v . : 22.26-47.25  2.00 -
v R B o . 47.26 or more 3.00 -

. <Prescription Drugs ceey 0§ 1,00 $ .50 L : N
© -=Nonemergency Surgery Sl 15,000 5.00 LT -
~Doctor's Office or T .1.00 .50 RN g '
Home Visit
California =Al1l MediCal Services $ 1.00
-Prescription Drugs 1.00 (over 510) . : .
-Nonemergency ER Services " 5.00 ST

Floraida : -Dentures . I

5% Coinsurance -Under age 21
=Hearing Aids

-Services to Ptegnant WOren

DC S ~Prescription Drugs - §$ .50 $ .50
~Eyeglasses 2.00 2.00
Illinois ~Inpacaent . $3 - £325/day % up

. 2 - 275-51325
Nonc - Below $275

© Iowa -t ~Podiatrist . . . - . $1.00
’ : -Optometrist g et 2.00
L 5 " -Chiropractor - R 1.00
-Psychologist R C 2.00 . - . ' =Undar Age 21 . :
) ~ =Dental Services . 3.o0 -Services to rreunan: ‘oren
% ~prescraption Drugs o 1.00 :
L -Medical Equipment e 2,00 e _ .
< ' -Orthopedic shoe Serv;ces s .2.00 . : .-
-Nearing Aid s : 3.00 .
-Cptician Services . 2.00
- ~Rechabilitation Agency Sve 2.00 .. .
-Physical Therapy 1.00 .
e .Kansas -Prescription Drugs $1.00 $1.00
. : -Dental Services 1,00
-Physician Services -1.00
=0Optometrist Services “.1.00
-Psychologist Services 71,00
~Chiropractor Services -1.00
~Ambulance (Non-ER) 1.00
-Prescraption Drugs .50 . : =Under age 21 B
. ' -Services to Pregnant honenp
. - N kN 'L’~ B T
i .—MN Aged, Bl;nd & Adults (21+)
' in the Family Category _ 5
H"Michigan -Prescription Drugs -1 .50 ST v
E -Dental Services . 073,00 3.00 Lo
. -Podiatrist L 2.00 2.00 —Under age 21
. i -Chiropractor R 1.00 1.00 ~Services to Preqnant Nonen 2
RV T -Hearing Aid : . 3.00 3.00
- -Vision "2.00 2.00
Missouri -Prescription Drugs : 10.00 or less, $0.50

to $25.00 1.00
or more 2.00

. -Dentures o . Coinsurance Seee
_=Dental o or less, $0.50 '
=Audiology to 25.99 1.00  ’
-Optical Services to 50.99 2.00
-Podiatry

or more J3.00
-Inpatlent Hospital Servxces ) X :

(per lospitalization
~Qutpatient Clinic/ER
-Physician Services

N,

'-Prescrxptxon Drugs

: source: Intergovernmental
Heahh Policy Project.

.
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Table I continued

COST-SHARING PROVISIONS -
COPAYMENT, COINSURANCE, DEDUCTIBLES
As of December 1983

Procedure/Service Charges Imposed Extended Exemptions of
. for which Copayment on Recipients Optional Provisions
State © 1s Imposed MN CN Under TEIRA
Nevada -Prescription Drugs .. $1.00
-Dentures : L : 3.00 . -Under age 21
RN - =Dental Services . co . 2.00 (Initial Exam) =Services to Pregnant Women
= ;- =Chiropractic Services 1.00 . . . :
5 . =Clinic Services . .. . 1.00 (MH-OPT) ~°
- % . : -Eyeglasses s 3.00
- " --P.T., O.T., Speech 1.00 ’ _ T
Hearing Therapy priee oy o - --
-Podiatric Services : 1.00
~Prosthetic Services PR 3.00 ..
-Transportation
eAmbulance e e 3.00
eMedi-van ’ L 2.C0
eTaxi . L - T 1.00
New Hampshire -Prescription Drugs . $0.75 $0.75
North Carolina ~Prescraiption Drugs «50 .50
-Dentists . 2.00 2.00
-Chiropractors . ’ .50 .50 =Services to Precanant Women-
-Podiatraist . 1.00 0 .
-Optometrist . 1.00 0
-Optical Sunnlies 2.00 2.00
~Clinic (Except Rural Health) 1.00 1.00
R -Hospital Inpatient 2.00 0
. -Hospital Outpatient 1.00 0
-Nonhospital Dialysis Facility 2.00 0
-Physician . 1.00 0
North Dakota -Eyeglasses (2nd or Subsequent 3.00 3.00
Pairs)
South Carolina =-Prescription Drugs . N .50 -Under age 21
-Eye Examination . 1.00
. -Podiatraist 1.00
-Fmergency Cental : 1.00
South Caxkota -Prescraiption Drugs . . 1.00
. =Chiropractic Visat .50 L
o -Prosthetic Device ) SV of Allowable Reimbursement .
-Medical Supply o 1.00 . . -
- =Medical Equipment ’ 5% of Allowable Peimbursement
-Mental Health Center Service 5% of Allowable Reimbursement
-Dental S e E e e ess . i
eTooth Extractions R K 1.00 T
eSurgical Procedures 1.00
eSetting of Fractures : 1.00
N eFull Dentures i 3.00 b
- ®eRelining of Dentures _ 3.00
-Optometric/Optical Services $ 1.00
=Physician Services : 1.00
~Nonemergency Outpatient Hospital - S\ of total charge
~Hospital Admission (non-ER) 25.00
-Rehabilitation Hospital .- 25.00

Inpatient Services
-Qutpatient Services

5% 6f total charge

Utah -Nonemergency use of ER 3.00 -
Vernont -Prescription Drugs 1.00 1.00
virginia -Prescription Drugs O ..10.99 or less, .50
. L : <. &7 -7 711.00 or more, 1.00
. =Clinic Visits oo 1.00 1.00
R -Eye Examinations . T 1.00 . 1.00
o =Physician Visits Y. 1.00 .

-Admission (Deductible) " 30.00
=Outpatient Visits (Except .

2.00
Medical Emergencies) e

X v

©:10.99 or less, .50

_West virginia =-Prescription Drugs
oL 11.00 or more, 1.00

~



continued

COST~-SHARING

Procedure/Services
for which Copayment
1s Imposed .

Charges Imposed
on Recipients
MN CN

PROVISIONS o .
. COPAYMENT, COINSURANCE, DEDUCTIBLES B .

Extencded Exemption of ~
. Optional Provisions
. Under TEFRA Tee T

-Hospital (Inpatient)

. 75.00 per
~..~Hospital (Outpatient) - . . .. 2.00 per
. =Rural Health Clinics RNy ... 2,00 per
-Chiropractic Services - .50 per
-Community Care Organization . .00 per
~Medical Day Treatment e .50 per
~Dental Services CT T .
eDiagnostic services .50 per
eProsthodontic Services (Full 1.00 per

Denture)
eOther Covered Dental Services
: (nonemergency)
-Orthodontic Services
Referral Required)

1.00 per

(EPSDT

" -Drugs and Disposable Medical .50 per
A Supplies

~Durable Medical Equipment (purchase) 1.00 per

-Eyeglasses : 3.00 per

* eFrame, Temple or Lens Replacement 2.00 per

eRepair Service «50 per

-Optometric Services
e eAnnual exam 2.00 per
eSupplemental Testing, Follow-up .50 per
Exam

eVision Training & Therapy or

. Low Vision Services . -+ 1.00 per

° eContact Lens Service . 3.00 per

‘=Hearing Aids 3.00 per

-Occupational or Physical Therapy

Services -«50 per
‘=psychotherapy/Alcohol and other -
Drug Abuse Therapy (outpatient) . «50 per

~-Speech, Hearing and Language
Disorder Services, Individual or
Group Theraoy

.50 per

. TAudiological Testing 1.00 per
-Transportation, Ambulance (non- 2.00 per
emergency)
-EPSDT

1.0J per

$ 3.00/day, not to exceed

2.00;53.00 per approved service

stay S
visit o '
visit
procedure
month Lo
day o

service
approved Service

service e

new and refill prescription

item
pair
procedure
pervice

procedure =~ . -
procedure

approved procedure k )
approved procedure -
item :

15 minutes
15 minutes S

15 minutes

service
trip




APPENDIX D

MEDICALLY NEEDY
FEDERAL COST SHARE REGULATIONS

Institutional Services

. Under waiver, states can impose a copayment up to twice
the maximum allowable for nonemergent services provided
in an emergency room.

. Cost share cannot exceed 50% of the cost of the first
day of care.

Noninstitutional Services

. Deductible not to exceed $2.00 per month per family.

. Coinsurance not to exceed 5% of the agency payment for

the service.
. Copayments not to exceed:

State Payment Maximum
For Service Copayment
$10.00 or Tless $0.50
$10.01 to $25.00 $1.00
$25.01 to $50.00 $2.00
$50.01 or more $3.00
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APPENDIX L

NEW JERSEY MEDICAID (TITLE XIX) SERVICES

BASIC SERVICES REQUIRED BY FEDERAL REGULATION:
Inpatient Hospital Services (other than services provided in an
institution for tuberculosis or mental diseases)
Qutpatient Hospital Services
Rural Health Clinic Services
Other Laboratory and X-ray Services

Skilled Nursing Facility Services (other than an institution for
tuberculosis or mental diseases) and Home Health Services
for individuals 21 and older

Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment
for individuals under 21 (EPSDT)

Family Planning

Physician and Psychiatric Services provided in the office, patient's
home, hospital long term care facility or in any other setting

Transportation for Medical Services

OPTIONAL SERVICES OFFERED IN NEW JERSEY:

Podiatrists' Services
Optometrists' Services
Chiropractors' Services
Psychologists' Services

Clinic Services (including ambulatory surgical centers, community

health care centers, partial care and partial hospitalization
centers, family planning, and drug abuse clinics)

Dental Services

Physical Therapy

Occupationz] Therapy ;
Speech, Pathology and Audiology Services
Prescribed Medication

Dentures

Prosthetic and Orthotic Devices, including hearing aids, artifical
limbs, braces and orthopedic shoes

Eyeglasses and other Optical Appliances
Diagnostic Services, such as CAT scans
Screening Services, such as screening for lead poisoning

-52-
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OPTIONAL SERVICES (continued):

Preventive Services, such as immunizations and well-child visits
Durable Medical Equipment, such as wheelchairs and hospital beds

Medical Services including nursing services; home health aide
services; medical supplies, equipment and appliances suitable
for use in the home; physical therapy, occupational therapy,
speech therapy and audiological services.

Services for age 65 or older in Mental Institutions
Inpatient hospital services
SNF services
ICF services

Intermediate Care Facility Services, including services for the
mentally retarded

Inpatient Psychiatric Services for individuals under age 21
Christian Science Sanitoria

Skilled Nursing Facility Services for individuals under the
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